




CHAIRMANS AND CEOS REPORT

To Our Fellow Shareholders

Fiscal 2013 was year of substantial shipments and record revenues for ZBB Energy with

product revenues more than doubling from fiscal year 2012 Most revenues in fiscal year 2013

were generated by the sale of ZBBs EnerSystemTM platforms which include our ZBB
EnerStore flow battery technology and ZBB EnerSection power and energy control

capabilities We delivered systems to variety of target markets including the U.S military

local governments utilities commercial resorts and multi-family commercial building

complexes During fiscal 2013 we also furthered our position as provider of power
electronics for unique and demanding applications such as our Hybrid Vehicle Controller to

the Cummins Crosspoint wholly owned subsidiary Crosspoint Kinetics as well as number of

power electronics systems for distributed generation pilot programs

Shipping to variety of markets and an expansive array of applications presented us with

unique engineering challenges offering numerous opportunities to further our intellectual

property development and upgrade the battery technology introduced 18 months ago While

some of these changes have been mechanical much of the effort has been dedicated to

advancing system software capabilities All advances have enhanced our intellectual property

portfolio and have contributed to ZBB maintaining its technology lead in flow battery

development

Working closely with customers has led to better understanding of their requirements

particularly as they learn the range of functionality that our systems offer Were seeing that

with measured changes to our power electronics configuration we can better deliver to exactly

what each customer requires

Given all that we have learned we are implementing revised strategic plan for fiscal year

2014

2014 Strategic Plan

Power Electronics

Were seeing substantial increase in interest in ZBBs power electronics capabilities This

interest cuts across the ZBB EnerSection the Hybrid Vehicle Controller and other electronics

products that we demonstrated in FY 2013 or will demo in FY 2014 This interest also requires

the electronics to be capable of using non-flow battery technology in certain applications

Weve already completed trial applications with ultra-capacitors lead acid and lithium ion

batteries and believe there is substantial market for battery agnostic electronics Therefore

we are augmenting our emphasis on power electronics commercialization and power

electronics development in FY 2014 This emphasis will gradually move the company away
from being battery centric and will position the Company to becoming more customer centric

providing range of products that deliver the lowest cost energy alternative



Battery Development

While we will be intensifying our emphasis on our power electronics capabilities and

development we will continue to develop our flow battery technology Most of the

development will be accomplished in conjunction with partners providing key technical input

and funding Currently we see ZBBs flow battery technology as being the state of the art in

the industry but additional development is required for our flow battery technology to become

the battery of choice by the customer Our partners share our view of our current standing in

the industry and share our vision that we can become the battery of choice to the end

customer This development will require sizeable funding which only substantial partners are

capable of providing

Company Vision

Weve found that its critically important for ZBB to provide customer solutions that can reduce

the customers costs and at the same time improve the customers reliability In fiscal year

2013 we began this process with earning ETL certification to UL 1741 which allows ZBB to

install grid-tie systems behind the meter We found these applications can be very lucrative

but require more emphasis by ZBB on the power electronics and an improved understanding

of integrating distributed generation storage and customer load characteristics

In fiscal year 2014 you will see ZBBs power electronics equipment integrating not only ZBB

batteries wind and solar but also microturbines reciprocating engines absorption chillers

variety of customer load equipment and various storage technologies The principal focus will

be to provide an integrated system that reduces the customers cost and improves the

customers reliability

Thank you

Paul and Eric
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PART

Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and

Notes thereto included within this Annual Report on Form 10-K In addition to historical information this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and the following discussion contain statements that are not historical facts and are considered forward-

looking within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21 of the Exchange Act These forward-

looking statements contain projections of our future results of operations or of our financial position or state other forward-

looking information In some cases you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as anticipate

believe could estimate expect intend may should will and would or similar words We believe that it is

important to communicate our future expectations to our investors However there may be events in the future that we

are not able to accurately predict or control and that may cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations

we describe in our forward-looking statements Investors are cautioned not to rely on forward-looking statements

because they involve risks and uncertainties and actual results may differ materially from those discussed as result of

various factors including but not limited to the cost and timing of developing our products our ability to raise the

necessary capital to fund our operations market acceptance of our ZBB EnerStore and ZBB EnerSection systems and

other new products our ability to grow rapidly while successfully managing our growth our ability to establish and

maintain relationships with third parties with respect to product development manufacturing distribution and servicing and

the supply of key product components the cost and availability of components and parts for our products our ability to

develop commercially viable products our ability to reduce product and manufacturing costs and improve our global

supply chain our ability to demonstrate system reliability for both our ZBB EnerStore and ZBB EnerSection products our

ability to successfully expand our product lines competitive factors such as price competition and competition from other

traditional and alternative energy companies our ability to manufacture products on large-scale commercial basis our

ability to retain our managerial personnel and to attract additional personnel the successful management of our

international operations including our international joint ventures our ability to protect our intellectual property the cost of

complying with current and future federal state and international governmental regulations and other risks and

uncertainties discussed under Item lARisk Factors Readers should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking

statements These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which the statements were made and are not

guarantees of future performance Except as may be required by applicable law we do not undertake or intend to update

any forward-looking statements after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item Business

ZBB Energy Corporation ZBB we us our or the Company serves the global need for reliable power in off-grid

and grid-connected environments by designing and manufacturing innovative energy storage and power control

technologies ZBBs wholly owned subsidiary Tier Electronics provides specialty power electronics serving various

markets that require demanding design and performance criteria including the hybrid electric vehicle market

Incorporated in the United States in 1998 the Company focused on advancing proprietary zinc bromide rechargeable

electrical energy storage technologies ultimately leading to the current generation ZBB EnerStore flow battery utilizing

the Companys zinc bromide chemistry In 2010 the Company accelerated its strategy to become leading developer

and manufacturer of modular scalable and environmentally friendly power systems leveraging its unique power

electronics capabilities to provide the market with storage systems to serve multitude of markets applications and

geographies The ZBB EnerSection power and energy control center was the resultant product introduced as the

enabling technology to ensure that in off-grid and grid-connected environments all conventional and renewable

generating assets are effectively prioritized and optimized to ensure loads are always served with the most cost effective

power and energy ZBB EnerSystemsTM platforms combining energy storage and power electronics capabilities are

presently deployed in markets and applications around the world ensuring power reliability independence and security

Headquartered in Menomonee Falls Wisconsin USA ZBB also has offices in Perth Western Australia In December

2011 the Company contributed cash and certain assets to ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited which contributed assets to

form Meineng Energy joint venture in China

The Companys advanced electrical power management platforms target the growing global need for distributed

renewable energy energy efficiency power quality and grid modernization The consolidated financial statements include

the accounts of the Company and those of its wholly-owned subsidiaries Tier Electronics LLC which operates

manufacturing facilities in Menomonee Falls Wisconsin ZBB Energy Pty Ltd formerly known as ZBB Technologies

Ltd which has an advanced engineering and development facility in Perth Australia and its sixty percent owned

subsidiary ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited located in Hong Kong which was formed in connection with the Companys

investment in China joint venture former wholly-owned subsidiary ZBB Technologies Inc was merged with and into

ZBB on January 2012



Our Products

These are disruptive times for the power ndustry and the ndustry must adapt to meat the chaUenqe of grid built on old

technology and uneconomic dispatched generation With an abundance of renewable energy gener tion to be realized in

various domestic and international locations problems utilizing povier from renewables persist because the grid netwo

cannot effectively utilize the additional and inherently variable gene ration propensity of the renewabks The grid today

srmply isnt designed to accommodate such influxes and their ntnnsic variability

Our products address the grids limiting capabilities by integrating cnntrolled pownr flows ints onomical clean and

rdiable power systems providing proven solutions to modernize and create selfhealing grids to mitigate the limitations of

grids throughout the world

Our products are also used throughout the world in remote micro grid applications often completely off grid to leverage

benefits from convergent value streams afforded by ZBB technoloçies ability to provide consistent and reliable power to

loads in remote areas from multiple inherently variable renewable and conventional energy sources

Advanced Fnergy Storage

ZOO EnerStore flow batteries are modular and scalable aelt conta ned and front accessible ma irig
them ideal for

distributed energy projects whether on or off the grid The ZOO EnrrStore captures multiple value streams including time

shifting firming of renewsbfes load managemant ani system backup

180 LnerStoio ziricbromide flow batteries provide

The lowest cost of ownership over 20 year design life in bulk

energy storage application

5x the energy density of vanadium redox flow battery designs

patented integrated DC bus design requiring no onsite wirin for

DC power connections

blackstart capable system with no external auxiliary power put

required

modular redundant and scalable architecture from 50 kWh ta Multi

MWh from single point of system connection

Wide arribient operating temperature range with no external

structures or climate controlled enclosures requ red for outdooi

placement

system requiring no additional ventilation fire suppression oi spill containment for indoor locations

While ZBB manufactures flow battery technology we are storage eqnostic in our approach to designing systems utilizing

the best price and performance storage technology for the application and operating environment ten times using two

or more types of energy storage in hybrid configuration to optimi4 power and energy performance characteristics

Power Electronic Systems

Ihe ZBB EnerSection power and energy control center provides firm dispatchable renewable and bad up power plant

for everyday energy management and emergency operations Its configurable architecture integratea multiple AC and DC

power generation sources together with one or many different type of energy storage units combined with any blend of

utility grid tie inverters stand alono inverters for off grid AC power

and/or DC outputs to provide DC power

The 788 EnerSection power and energy control center is

The heart of the LOB requiring only single

point of connection to all connected power sources and

storage

univeisal modular design integrating any power input and

output with any storage device via discrete power electronic

buckets

Easily and quickly expanded or modified in the field

Utilizes inverters that are certified to the UI /41 standard

Patented with common DC bus seamlessly hybridizing

n-ultiple battery traits providing fast respon3e with long

discharge bulk storage as needed

Rated from 25kw to Multi MW
system with wide temperature ianige of 22 to 2F to 50
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Gild ndependent Ott Grid

When gnd power is cost prohibitive sooradic or completely unavaUable the 1SB

EnerSystem supports the integration of nearly any combination of on cite powei

generating sources creating reliable microgrid LBBs system alloWs for

electrical cost savings and reduction of diesel fuel power generation

Gild Converson Grid as input

When energy is inconaistent LBBs platform allows the grid to be ued as

way input to provide continuous power flows from connected resourcez improvino

overall power availability This platform isolates thc load from various grid

disturbances variability of renewablc sources and minimizes the need to switch to

or start up diesel gen sets

Target Markets by AppUcaton

Whether connected to the grid or not ZBBs power md energy cor trol solutions are used in variety of applications and

markets The primary users of our energy storage systems are expected to be utility corripanks at tl dstdbuton lev

commeicial/industrial users and remote offgrid applications

Micrognds

In applications where power is inconsistent unreliable or relies on diesel generators the ZBB

EnerSystem providss microgrid olution that can function as an autonomou island of power dur ng

times of emergency With intelligent power managsmont and storage the ZE3B EnerSystem uses

mix of energy sources reduces dependence diesel fuel powsr generation and avoids service

interruptions providing grid stability even with increasing amounts of distributed renewable generation

The benefits of the LBB EnerSyatem in this aplication include

Reduce costly demand charges and peak Pates

Instant backup power in combination with or in lieu of diesel gen set

Use normally stranded assets during grid outages

Modular and configurable architecture that is adaptable and scalable

Transportable design allows for use in temporary bottlenecks and mobile platform needs

Commerca Buddings

Commercial building energy use in the United tates is extremely high and with the cost of cnergy

and the risk of energy reliability both rising large power consumers are positioning themse yes to

be more energy independent Commercial bui ding owner managers and integrators can reduce

costs integrate renewables witF storage and lart grid interface minimize th ue of diesel

gencrators and improve the reliability security and cfficiency of electric power with ZBB

EnerSystem rhe benefits of the ZBB EnerSyctem in this application include

Minimize peak loads

Participate in utility demand response programs without curtailing operations

Maintain critical systems during power outages or failures

Dampen the impact of Level EV Fast Ch 3rginj

Cain greater efficiency and mprove reliabi ity using DC distribution system

Participate in Federal and State tax credits mnd grants

Remote/OftGrid

remote or off grid micrognid is usually built in areas that are far distance from any transmission

and distribution infrastructure and therefore have no connection to the utility grid Remote rnicrogrids

operate in island mode 24/7 and are never connected to the grid ZBB EnerSystem can help

provide clean reliable electricity in remote off grid environments by reducing or eliminating the use of

diesel generators and leadacid batteries The benefits of the ZBB EnerSystom in this application

include
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In May 2013 ZBB announced the successful commissioning of first-in-world multi generation source ZBB

EnerSystem that provides uninterrupted power to DC voltage lighting loads rack power to servers and other

miscellaneous loads at VISAS flagship data center The ZBB EnerSection provides completely integrated energy

management platform ready to interconnect for the requirements for distributed grid regulation by utility companies

In March 2013 ZBB announced the launch of the first renewable energy generator set and energy storage project

sizing application which is based on the ZBB EnerSystem platform Powered by HOMER Energys Hybrid

Optimization of Multiple Energy Resources world-class optimization analytical engine the new web-based application

is accessible via ZBB Energys corporate website and is designed to provide optimized economic power system

configurations for remote grid microgrids and intermittent grid supply applications by location

In January 2013 ZBB announced the receipt of an order for grid independent ZBB EnerSystem with its ZBB

EnerStore zinc bromide flow batteries to provide an integrated microgrid energy management system to the University

of Technology Sydney UTS to serve as permanent power source demonstration unit and learning platform in the

newly constructed Broadway Building

In January 2013 ZBB announced that they entered into strategic relationship with BPC Engineering Moscow
Russia www.bpcgroup.ru This relationship introduces ZBBs line of products into the Russian and Commonwealth of

Independent States CIS markets BPC Engineering already established as major supplier of distributed

generation in the Russian and CIS markets will market sell and support ZBB products In conjunction with the signing

of the strategic relationship with BPC Power Systems ZBB received the initial purchase order for complete ZBB

EnerSystem consisting of ZBB EnerStore flow battery and ZBB EnerSection power and control center

In December 2012 ZBB announced it signed an agreement to supply its 2000 kWh ZBB EnerStore System for the

luxury eco-resort The Brando project in French Polynesia designed to be the first LEED Leadership in Energy and

Environmental Design Platinum certified destination resort in the world as new construction and in the campus

category The resorts electrical supply will include mix of renewable energy sources including an 896 kW
array of

photovoltaic PV panels and generators that use sustainable biofuels made from locally sourced coconut oil

In November 2012 ZBB announced strategic supply agreement to provide controllers for Crosspoint Kinetics

second generation hybrid system Crosspoint Kinetics second generation hybrid systems initially serving the Class

and small to medium size bus markets in the United States are valued for providing significantly greater fuel

efficiency and reduced carbon emissions Many fleets throughout North America presently have these systems

operating in their equipment

In July 2012 ZBB announced successful commissioning of its ZBB EnerSystem for the Illinois Institute of

Technologys Perfect Power Micro Grid Project Funded by lIT and the US Department of Energy DOE the

Perfect Power micro grid system at lIT is the first energy distribution system of its kind in the United States

In July 2012 ZBBs China Joint Venture Meineng Energy opened state-of-the-art factory for manufacturing of

advanced energy storage and control products The factory is designed to have an annualized nameplate capacity

rated at 100MWh of energy storage and control products

Market Opportunities and Challenges

Our highest value opportunities continue to be the vertical markets consisting of industrial and commercial buildings

microgrids and remote grids These vertical markets benefit from different value streams depending on the region of the

world but they share the common objectives of looking to simply arid cost effectively ensure power quality integrate

renewables minimize use of intermittent generators and have the opportunity to operate independent of the commercial

grid

Our near-term market growth initiatives are focused on opportunities for repeatable wins serving applications in the

vertical markets that comprise our current order backlog and utilize our Grid Interactive Grid Independent and Grid

Conversion platforms in domestic and international markets

The commercial and industrial buildings vertical market we serve benefits from the customer side of the meter in

geographies that reduce costs by eliminating demand charges time shifting from peak rates reducing or eliminating

costly diesel and leveraging greater use and diversity of renewable energy sources by managing intermittency There is

tremendous opportunity to win repeat orders in this vertical market in regions such as Hawaii that can immediately benefit

from the aforementioned value streams and in international markets because we can firm load power in regions where

the grid offers poor power quality and is generally unstable and unreliable

The micro grid and remote grid vertical markets benefit financially and strategically from ZBBs capabilities in that they

are often minimizing the use of diesel by prioritizing and optimizing renewables while at the same time lessening

dependence on the commercial grid We have announced number of projects for micro grid and remote grid



applications many of which are serving the Department of Defense further establishing ZBB as the new standard for

intelligent integrated power management solutions We have additional defense related projects in our pipeline as well

as remote grid applications serving the private commercial building market These are grid independent applications that

if not for our capabilities would often be completely reliant on local generation for their power requirements

In the grid-tied commercial building market we recently announced that we commissioned ZBB EnerSystem at mid-

rise residential apartment building near downtown Honolulu The system consists of ZBB EnerStore zinc bromide flow

battery modules and ZBB EnerSection directly connected to photovoltaic PV array The ZBB EnerSystem provides

an integrated scalable modular intelligent storage and power solution

Our international partners in China Meineng Energy and South Korea Lotte are pursuing and engaging numerous

opportunities solving various regional and market specific power issues with the intent of leveraging those that prove to

have the best near term adoption for longer term revenue growth and profitability

Meineng Energy is now operating in new state-of-the-art factory designed for an annualized nameplate capacity rated

at O0MWh of energy storage and power control products The 3000 square meter production area is configured to

assemble and test the full suite of ZBB Energy advanced energy storage and power electronics products

There are additional international markets with vertical specific targets that will play significant role in our global growth

and our technology is designed to be easily adapted to region specific requirements to leverage number of the same

value streams present in the markets we serve today We intend to align with strong regional partners as we enter

additional international markets and have active discussions with prospective strategic partners that offer the capabilities

critical to achieving success in high growth offshore markets

Domestically and internationally we anticipate our technologies serve as utility controlled assets on the grid which will be

significant consideration as utilities search for ways to monetize distributed renewables as they continue to gain parity

with the grid

Longer term vertical market considerations such as for larger scale utility applications are of interest and our technology

lends itself to scaling to larger block kWh hour sizes from our current block of 50 kWh units we can scale for larger utility

scale applications and decrease per kWh cost

In the markets presently served we are often replacing or offsetting use of commercial diesel generators and business

as usual practices We are storage agnostic in that the ideal battery for every application and operating environment

does not exist We have booked projects that utilize other types of energy storage in conjunction with our ZBB

EnerSection power and energy control technology as well as hybridized platforms combining other technologies with our

ZBB EnerStore flow battery By hybridizing technologies we can ensure that loads get exactly the power needed for the

duration required in wide range of applications and operating environments

We have substantial pipeline of projects serving diverse yet targeted markets and applications indicating the interest in

our technology as the answer to burning diesel fuel and operating with business as usual mindset

The capabilities resident within ZBBs wholly owned subsidiary Tier Electronics continue to provide opportunities to win

custom power electronics business specifically for applications requiring unique packaging price and performance

characteristics Tier continues to demonstrate that their ability to move quickly from concept to prototype and subsequent

production is of tremendous value in variety of domestic and international markets in applications as diverse as hybrid

electric vehicles and utility line regulators

Competition

As discussed elsewhere in this Business section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K we believe our technologies and

products provide us with certain competitive advantages in the markets we serve However even with these advantages

the market for renewable energy products and services is intensely competitive and continually impacted by evolving

industry standards rapid price changes and product obsolescence Our competitors include many domestic and foreign

companies most of which have substantially greater financial marketing personnel and other resources than we do

Although we believe that the advantages described above and elsewhere in this Business section of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K position us well to be competitive in our industry as small company we are and will continue to be at

competitive disadvantage to most of our competitors which include larger established companies that have substantially

greater financial technical manufacturing marketing distribution and other resources than we do

Intellectual Property

Our market position in part depends on our Intellectual Property IP portfolio and our ability to obtain and maintain

intellectual property IP protection for our products processes technology and know-how In addition we must operate

without infringing on the proprietary rights of others while preventing others from infringing on our proprietary rights We
seek to protect our IP by among other methods filing United States and foreign patent applications related to our



proprietary technology inventions and improvements that are important to the development and conduct of our business

We also rely on trademarks trade secrets know-how and continuing technological innovation to evolve and ensure our

proprietary position

We have been issued international patents in several strategic countries including South Korea China Australia Canada

and Mexico and continue to pursue others for the ZBB EnerSection power and energy control technology US patent

issued in August of 2011 In July 2012 we also filed for US and international patents on enhancements to the ZBB

EnerSection Additionally we have filed for multiple patents in the areas of advanced energy storage technology and

power electronics and controls as they relate to our ZBB EnerStore battery and ZBB EnerSection power and energy

control center respectively as well as other power electronics products Beyond the actual patent filings we are

presently in the process of completing disclosures and filings on several other patent filings in both the power electronics

and controls and the ZBB EnerStore and ZBB EnerSection technologies On an ongoing basis we review and evaluate the

opportunity to expand our IP portfolio with an established roadmap of IP development as to the best means of protecting

additional technologies related to each of the companys core product areas power electronics energy storage and

system integration and control

In some circumstances we rely on trade secrets to protect our technology and seek to protect our proprietary technology

and processes in part by confidentiality agreements with our employees customers prospective customers consultants

advisors and contractors

We use trademarks on some of our products and have registered our ZBB EnerStore ZBB EnerSection ZBB

EnerSystem and ZBB EnerTowerTM marks in the United States and internationally

Advanced Engineering and Development

Our key advanced engineering initiatives are

The advancement of our zinc bromide flow battery technology both internally and in cooperation with strategic

partners

Development of additional versions and sizes of the ZBB EnerSection and ZBB EnerStore

Expansion of the existing ZBB EnerSection plug-and-play module portfolio

Advancement of our remote monitoring and control platforms

Development of additional power electronics and control technologies dedicated to support of the ZBB EnerSection as

well as products designed for the renewable energy alternative energy and power quality markets

Continuous enhancement of the existing product lines

The goal of these initiatives is to substantially reduce manufacturing costs improve performance reduce cost of

ownership and expand the capabilities of our products Our advanced engineering and development expense and cost of

engineering and development revenues totaled approximately $5.4 million and $7.2 million in the years ended June 30
2013 and 2012 respectively We also had engineering and development revenues of approximately $400000 and $2.5

million in the years ended June 30 2013 and 2012 respectively

Employees

ZBB currently has an aggregate of 69 full time employees of which 67 are located at our U.S manufacturing and

corporate headquarters in Wisconsin and two are employed at our Research and Development facility in Australia Tier

Electronics has full time employees at its manufacturing facility in Menomonee Falls WI We expect stafting numbers to

increase as our business grows and new production equipment is deployed in accordance with our business expansion

plans

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K our Quarterly Reports on Form O-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-K that we

may file or furnish to the SEC pursuant to Sections 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as well as any

amendments to any of those reports are available free of charge on or through our website as soon as reasonably

practicable after we file them with or furnish them to the SEC electronically Our website is located at

www.zbbenergy.com In addition you may receive copy of any of our reports free of charge by contacting our Investor

Relations department at our corporate headquarters

Item 1A Risk Factors

We operate in rapidly changing environment that involves number of risks some of which are beyond our control This

discussion highlights some of the risks which may affect future operating results These are the risks and uncertainties we

believe are most important for you to consider We cannot be certain that we will successfully address these risks If we

are unable to address these risks our business may not grow our stock price may suffer and we may be unable to stay in
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business Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us which we currently deem immaterial or which are

similar to those faced by other companies in our industry or business in general may also impair our business operations

Our stock price could be volatile and our trading volume may fluctuate substantially

The price of our common stock has been and may in the future continue to be extremely volatile with the sale price

fluctuating from low of $0.18 to high of $6.00 since June 18 2007 the first day our stock was traded on the NYSE

MKT formerly NYSE Amex Many factors could have significant impact on the future price of our common stock

including

the various risks and uncertainties discussed below

general domestic and international economic conditions and other external factors

general market conditions and

the degree of trading liquidity in our common stock

In addition the stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations This volatility has

had significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies which may be unrelated to the

operating performance of those particular companies These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect our share

price notwithstanding our operating results

For the three-month period ended June 30 2013 the daily trading volume for shares of our common stock ranged from

23200 to 3104400 shares traded per day and the average daily trading volume during such three-month period was

407258 shares traded per day Accordingly our investors who wish to dispose of their shares of common stock on any

given trading day may not be able to do so or may be able to dispose of only portion of their shares of common stock

We have incurred losses and anticipate incurring continuing losses

For the year ended June 30 2013 we had revenues of $7723699 During this period we had net loss of $1 1878915

after deducting the net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest For the year ended June 30 2012 we had revenues

of $4805568 During this period we had net loss of $13710226 There can be no assurance that we will have income

from operations or net income in the future As of June 30 2013 we had an accumulated deficit of $80932824 We

anticipate that we will continue to incur losses until we can produce and sell sufficient number of our systems to be

profitable However we cannot predict when we will operate profitably if ever Even if we do achieve profitability we may

be unable to sustain or increase our profitability in the future

We need additional financing

We have incurred losses since inception and expect to continue to incur losses until we are able to significantly grow our

revenues Accordingly we need additional financing to remain in operation and to maintain and expand our business and

such financing may not be available on favorable terms if at all In the event that we issue any additional equity

securities investors interests in the Company will be diluted and investors may suffer dilution in their net book value per

share depending on the price at which such securities are sold Further any such issuance may result in change in

control

If we are unable to obtain the necessary funds on acceptable terms we may not be able to

remain in operation

execute our growth plan

take advantage of future opportunities or

respond to customers and competition

We may issue debt and/or senior equity securities in the future which would be senior to our common stock upon

liquidation Upon liquidation holders of our debt securities senior equity securities and lenders with respect to other

borrowings will receive distributions of our available assets prior to the holders of our common stock

Our industry is highly competitive and we may be unable to successfully compete

We compete in the market for renewable energy products and services which is intensely competitive Evolving industry

standards rapid price changes and product obsolescence also impact the market Our competitors include many

domestic and foreign companies most of which have substantially greater financial marketing personnel and other

resources than we do Our current competitors or new market entrants could introduce new or enhanced technologies

products or services with features that render our technologies products or services obsolete or less marketable Our

success will be dependent upon our ability to develop products that are superior to existing products and products

introduced in the future and which are cost effective In addition we may be required to continually enhance any products

that are developed as well as introduce new products that keep pace with technological change and address the

increasingly sophisticated needs of the marketplace Even if our current technologies prove to be commercially feasible
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there is extensive research and development being conducted on alternative energy sources that may render our

technologies and protocols obsolete or otherwise non-competitive

There can be no assurance that we will be able to keep pace with the technological demands of the marketplace or

successfully develop products that will succeed in the marketplace As small company we will be at competitive

disadvantage to most of our competitors which include larger established companies that have substantially greater

financial technical manufacturing marketing distribution and other resources than us There can be no assurance that

we will have the capital resources available to undertake the research which may be necessary to upgrade our equipment

or develop new devices to meet the efficiencies of changing technologies Our inability to adapt to technological change

could have materially adverse effect on our results of operations

Our ability to achieve significant revenue growth will be dependent on the successful commercialization of our

new products including our third generation ZBB EnerStore zinc bromide flow battery and ZBB EnerSection

power and energy control center

We anticipate that substantial majority of our revenue in fiscal year 2014 will come from new products including our

third generation ZBB EnerStore zinc bromide flow battery and ZBB EnerSection power and energy control center If these

new products do not meet with market acceptance our business financial condition and results of operations will be

adversely affected number of factors may affect the market acceptance of our new products including among others

the price of our products relative to other products either currently available or subsequently introduced

the perception by potential customers and strategic partners of the effectiveness of our products for their intended

purposes
our ability to fund our manufacturing sales and marketing efforts and

the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts

Our products are and will be sold in new and rapidly evolving markets As such we cannot accurately predict the extent

to which demand for these products will increase if at all We do not know whether our targeted customers will accept

our technology or will purchase our products in sufficient quantities to allow our business to grow To succeed demand

for our products must increase significantly in existing markets and there must be strong demand for products that we

introduce in the future The commercial success of our new products is also dependent on the design and development

of an efficient and cost-effective means to integrate such products into existing electrical systems

To achieve profitability we will need to lower our costs and increase our margins which we may not be able to

do

To achieve profitability we will need to lower our costs and increase our margins major focus for us for fiscal 2014 is to

improve our global supply chain and reduce our costs These efforts may fail due to unforeseen factors Our failure to

lower our costs could make our products less competitive and harm our ability to grow our revenues Our inability to lower

our costs and increase our margins could have materially adverse effect on our results of operations

If our products do not perform as planned we could experience increased costs lower margins and harm to our

reputation

We anticipate that substantial majority of our revenue in fiscal year 2014 will come from new products including our

third generation ZBB EnerStore zinc bromide flow battery and ZBB EnerSection power and energy control center The

failure of these or other products to perform as planned could result in increased costs lower margins and harm to our

reputation which could have material adverse effect on our business and financial results

To succeed we will need to rapidly grow and we may not be sLlccesstul in managing this rapid growth

In order to successfully grow our revenues and become profitable we will need to grow rapidly but if we fail to effectively

manage this growth our business could be adversely affected Rapid growth will place significant demands on our

management operational and financial infrastructure If we do not Effectively manage our growth we may fail to timely

deliver products to our customers in sufficient volume or the quality of our products could suffer which could negatively

affect our operating results To effectively manage this growth we will need to hire additional personnel and we will need

to continue to improve our operational financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures As

we move forward in commercializing our new products we will also need to effectively manage our manufacturing and

marketing needs which represent new areas of oversight for us These additional employees systems enhancements

and improvements will require significant capital expenditures and management resources Failure to successfully

implement these improvements could hurt our ability to manage our growth and our financial position

Our relationships with our strategic partners may not be successful and we may not be successful in

establishing additional partnerships which could adversely affect our ability to commercialize our products and

services
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An important element of our business strategy is to enter into strategic partnerships with partners who can assist us in

achieving our business goals We are currently party to several strategic partnership arrangements and any disruption

in these collaborations could be detrimental to our business We expect to seek additional collaborators or strategic

partners due the expense effort and expertise required to develop market and commercialize our products and our limited

resources but we may not be successful in our efforts to establish additional strategic partnerships and arrangements If

we are unable to reach agreements with suitable strategic partners we may fail to meet our business objectives for the

commercialization of our products The terms of any additional strategic partnerships or other arrangements that we

establish may not be favorable to us Our inability to successfully implement strategic partnerships and arrangements

could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Shortages or delay of supplies of component parts may adversely affect our operating results until alternate

sources can be developed

Our operations are dependent on the ability of suppliers to deliver quality components devices and subassemblies in time

to meet critical manufacturing and distribution schedules If we experience any constrained supply of any such component

parts such constraints if persistent may adversely affect operating results until alternate sourcing can be developed

There may be an increased risk of supplier constraints in periods where we are increasing production volume to meet

customer demands Volatility in the prices of component parts an inability to secure enough components at reasonable

prices to build new products in timely manner in the quantities and configurations demanded or conversely temporary

oversupply of these parts could adversely affect our future operating results

We have no experience manufacturing our products on large-scale basis and may be unable to do so at our

manufacturing facilities

To date we have achieved only very limited production of our energy storage systems and have no experience

manufacturing our products on large-scale basis We believe our current facilities in Menomonee Falls Wisconsin are

sufficient to allow us to significantly increase production of our products However there can be no assurance that our

current facilities even if operating at full capacity will be adequate to enable us to produce the energy storage systems in

sufficient quantities to meet hoped for future orders Our inability to manufacture sufficient number of units on timely

basis would have material adverse effect on our business prospects financial condition and results of operations In

addition even if we are able to meet production requirements we may not be able to achieve margins that enable us to

become profitable

Our China joint venture could be adversely affected by the laws and regulations of the Chinese government our

lack of decision-making authority and disputes between us and the Joint Venture

The China market has large inherent need for advanced energy storage and power electronics and is likely to become

the worlds largest market for energy storage To take advantage of this opportunity in November 2011 we established

joint venture to develop produce sell distribute and service advanced storage batteries and power electronics in China

the Joint Venture

However achieving the anticipated benefits of the Joint Venture is subject to number of risks and uncertainties

The Joint Venture has an exclusive royalty-free license to manufacture and distribute our third generation ZBB

EnerStore zinc bromide flow battery and ZBB EnerSection power and energy control center up to 250KW the

Products in mainland China in the power supply management industry and non-exclusive royalty-free license to

manufacture and distribute the Products in Hong Kong and Taiwan in the power supply management industry Although

the Joint Venture partners are contractually restricted from using our intellectual property outside of the Joint Venture

there is always general risk associated with sharing intellectual property with third parties and the possibility that such

information may be used and shared without our consent Moreover China laws that protect intellectual property rights

are not as developed and favorable to the owner of such rights as are U.S laws If any of our intellectual property rights

are used or shared without our approval in China we may have difficulty in prosecuting our claim in an expeditious and

effective manner Difficulties or delays in enforcing our intellectual property rights could have material adverse effect on

our business and prospects

As general matter there are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of China laws and

regulations including but not limited to the laws and regulations governing the anticipated business of the Joint Venture

and the protection of intellectual property rights These laws and regulations are sometimes vague and may be subject to

future changes and their official interpretation and enforcement may involve substantial uncertainty The effectiveness of

newly enacted laws regulations or amendments may be delayed resulting in detrimental reliance by foreign investors

New laws and regulations that affect existing and proposed future businesses may also be applied retroactively The

unpredictability of the interpretation and application of existing and new China laws and regulations will pose additional

challenges for us as we seek to develop and grow the Joint Ventures business in China Our failure to understand these

laws or an unforeseen change in law or the application thereof could have an adverse effect on the Joint Venture
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The success of the Joint Venture will depend in part on continued support of new energy initiatives by the government of

China that includes requirements for products like ours Should the government change its policies in an unfavorable

manner the anticipated demand for the Joint Ventures products in China may fail to materialize

The Joint Venture may have economic tax or other business interests or goals which are inconsistent with our business

interests or goals and may be in position to take actions contrary to our policies or objectives Disputes between us

and the Joint Venture partners may result in litigation or arbitration that could be costly and divert the attention of our

management and key personnel from focusing their time and effort on our day to day business In addition we may in

certain circumstances be liable for the actions of the Joint Venture

The Joint Venture is new business in China As with any new business there will be many challenges facing the Joint

Venture including establishing successful manufacturing capabilities developing market for the Joint Ventures

products obtaining requisite governmental approvals and permits implementation of an untested business plan and

securing adequate funding for working capital and growth Failure to overcome any of these or any other challenges

facing the Joint Venture could result in its failure

Business practices in Asia may entail greater risk and dependence upon the personal relationships of senior

management than is common in North America and therefore some of our agreements with other parties in

China and South Korea could be difficult or impossible to enforce

We are increasing our business activities in Asia The business culture in parts of Asia is in some respects different from

the business cultures in Western countries Personal relationships among business principals of companies and business

entities in Asia are very significant in their business cultures In some cases because so much reliance is based upon

personal relationships written contracts among businesses in Asia may be less detailed and specific than is commonly

accepted for similar written agreements in Western countries In some cases material terms of an understanding are not

contained in the written agreement but exist only as oral agreements In other cases the terms of transactions which may
involve material amounts of money are not documented at all In addition in contrast to the Western business

environment where written agreement specifically defines the terms rights and obligations of the parties in legally-

binding and enforceable manner the parties to written agreement in Asia may view that agreement more as starting

point for an ongoing business relationship which will evolve and undergo ongoing modification over time As result any

contractual arrangements we enter into with counterparty in Asia may be more difficult to review understand and/or

enforce

Our success depends on our ability to retain our managerial personnel and to attract additional personnel

Our success depends largely on our ability to attract and retain managerial personnel Competition for desirable

personnel is intense and there can be no assurance that we will be able to attract and retain the necessary staff The

loss of members of managerial staff could have material adverse effect on our future operations and on successful

development of products for our target markets The failure to maintain management and to attract additional key

personnel could materially adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

We market and sell and plan to market and sell our products in numerous international markets If we are unable

to manage our international operations effectively our business financial condition and results of operations

could be adversely affected

We market and sell and plan to market and sell our products in number of foreign countries including China Australia

South Africa Canada European Union countries the United Kingdom Italy Chile Brazil India Mexico as well as Puerto

Rico various Caribbean island nations and various southeast Asia countries and we are therefore subject to risks

associated with having international operations Risks inherent in international operations include but are not limited to

the following

changes in general economic and political conditions in the countries in which we operate

unexpected adverse changes in foreign laws or regulatory requirements including those with respect to renewable

energy environmental protection permitting export duties and quotas

trade barriers such as export requirements tariffs taxes and other restrictions and expenses which could increase

the prices of our products and make us less competitive in some countries

fluctuations in exchange rates may affect demand for our products and may adversely affect our profitability

difficulty of and costs relating to compliance with the different commercial and legal requirements of the overseas

markets in which we offer and sell our products

inability to obtain maintain or enforce intellectual property rights and

difficulty in enforcing agreements in foreign legal systems

Our business in foreign markets requires us to respond to rapid changes in market conditions in these countries Our

overall success as global business depends in part on our ability to succeed in differing legal regulatory economic

14



social and political conditions We may not be able to develop and implement policies and strategies that will be effective

in each location where we do business which in turn could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of

operations

Our financial results may vary significantly from period-to-period due to long and unpredictable sales cycles for

some of our products and the cyclical nature of certain end-markets into which we sell our products which may
in turn lead to volatility in our stock price

The amount and timing of our revenue recognition from sales to our customers is difficult to predict We are often required

to invest significant time to educate our customers about the use and benefits of our products including their technical

and performance characteristics Customers typically undertake significant evaluation process that has in the past

resulted in lengthy sales cycle for us typically many months If our revenue falls below our expectations or is delayed in

any given period we may not be able to reduce proportionately our operating expenses for that period

Accordingly we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and

that these comparisons cannot be relied upon as indicators of future performance

Businesses and consumers might not adopt alternative energy solutions as means for obtaining their

electricity and power needs and therefore our revenues may not increase and we may be unable to achieve and

then sustain profitability

On-site distributed power generation solutions such as fuel cell photovoltaic and wind turbine systems which utilize our

energy storage systems provide an alternative means for obtaining electricity and are relatively new methods of obtaining

electrical power that businesses may not adopt at levels sufficient to grow this part of our business Traditional electricity

distribution is based on the regulated industry model whereby businesses and consumers obtain their electricity from

government regulated utility For alternative methods of distributed power to succeed businesses and consumers must

adopt new purchasing practices and must be willing to rely upon less traditional means of purchasing electricity We

cannot assure you that businesses and consumers will choose to utilize on-site distributed power at levels sufficient to

sustain our business in this area The development of mass market for our products may be impacted by many factors

which are out of our control including

market acceptance of fuel cell photovoltaic and wind turbine systems that incorporate our products

the cost competitiveness of these systems

regulatory requirements and

the emergence of newer more competitive technologies and products

If mass market fails to develop or develops more slowly than we anticipate our business financial condition and results

of operations could be materially adversely affected

The success of our business depends on our ability to develop and protect our intellectual property rights which

could be expensive

Our ability to compete effectively will depend in part on our ability to protect our proprietary technologies systems

designs and manufacturing processes While we have attempted to safeguard and maintain our proprietary rights there

can be no assurance we have been or will be completely successful in doing so We rely on patents trademarks and

policies and procedures related to confidentiality to protect our intellectual property However most of our intellectual

property is not covered by any patents or patent applications Moreover there can be no assurance that any of our

pending patent applications will issue or in the case of patents issued or to be issued that the claims allowed are or will

be sufficient to protect our technology or processes Even if all of our patent applications are issued our patents may be

challenged or invalidated Patent applications filed in foreign countries may be subject to laws rules and procedures that

are substantially different from those of the United States and any resulting foreign patents may be difficult and expensive

to enforce

While we take steps to protect our proprietary rights to the extent possible there can be no assurance that third parties

will not know discover or develop independently equivalent proprietary information or techniques that they will not gain

access to our trade secrets or disclose our trade secrets to the public Therefore we cannot guarantee that we can

maintain and protect unpatented proprietary information and trade secrets Misappropriation of our intellectual property

could have an adverse effect on our competitive position and may cause us to incur substantial litigation costs

We may be subject to claims that we infringe the intellectual property rights of others and unfavorable outcomes

could harm our business

Our future operations may be subject to claims and potential litigation arising from our alleged infringement of patents

trade secrets or copyrights owned by other third parties We intend to fully comply with the law in avoiding such

infringements However we may become subject to claims of infringement including such claims or litigation initiated by

existing better-funded competitors We could also become involved in disputes regarding the ownership of intellectual
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property rights that relate to our technologies These disputes could arise out of collaboration relationships strategic

partnerships or other relationships Any such litigation could be expensive take significant time and could divert

managements attention from other business concerns Our failure to prevail in any such legal proceedings or even the

mere occurrence of such legal proceedings could substantially affect our ability to meet our expenses and continue

operations

If our shareholders equity falls below the minimum requirement or we otherwise fail to satisfy all required

continued listing requirements our common stock may be delisted from the NYSE MKT which would cause our

common stock to become less liquid

Our shares have been listed on the NYSE MKT formerly the NYSE Amex since June 18 2007 We are required to

comply with all reporting and listing requirements on timely manner and maintain our corporate governance and

independent director standards The NYSE MKT imposes among cther requirements listing maintenance standards

including minimum shareholders equity minimum stock price and market capitalization requirements

If we are unable to remain in compliance with applicable listing requirements and our common stock is delisted by NYSE

MKT it could lead to number of negative implications including reduced liquidity in our common stock and greater

difficulty in obtaining financing There can be no assurance that our common stock will remain eligible for trading on the

NYSE MKT

We may engage in acquisitions that could disrupt our business cause dilution to our stockholders and reduce

our financial resources

In the future we may enter into transactions to acquire other businesses products or technologies If we do identify

suitable candidates we may not be able to make such acquisitions on favorable terms or at all Any acquisitions we make

may not strengthen our competitive position and these transactions may be viewed negatively by customers or investors

We may decide to incur debt in connection with an acquisition or issue our common stock or other securities to the

stockholders of the acquired company which would reduce the percentage ownership of our existing stockholders We
could incur losses resulting from undiscovered liabilities of the acquired business that are not covered by the

indemnification we may obtain from the seller In addition we may not be able to successfully integrate the acquired

personnel technologies and operations into our existing business in an effective timely and non-disruptive manner

Acquisitions may also divert management from day-to-day responsibilities increase our expenses and reduce our cash

available for operations and other uses We cannot predict the number timing or size of future acquisitions or the effect

that any such transactions might have on our operating results

We have never paid cash dividends and do not intend to do soP

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock We currently plan to retain any earnings to finance

the growth of our business rather than to pay cash dividends Payments of any cash dividends in the future will depend on

our financial condition results of operations and capital requirements as well as other factors deemed relevant by our

board of directors

Item Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

Item Properties

Wisconsin U.S.A Properties

The Companys primary manufacturing and administrative facility is located at N93 W14475 Whittaker Way Menomonee

Falls Wisconsin The Company owns this facility which has approximately 72000 square feet of space We believe this

facility has manufacturing capacity for up to $45 million of annual product sales

Tier Electronics LLC leases its facility located in Menomonee Falls Wisconsin under lease agreement expiring

December 31 2014 The current rental is $84000 per annum and is subject to CPI adjustment at renewal The

Company is required to pay real estate taxes and other occupancy costs related to the facility The property is

approximately 10400 square feet and is used to house Tier Electronics LLCs production assembly and administration

headquarters We believe this facility has manufacturing capacity for up to $5 million of annual product sales

Bibra Lake Western Australia Leasehold

In 2001 our Australian subsidiary moved into new leased self-contained research and development facilities in Bibra

Lake Western Australia after previously occupying leased laboratory and workshop facilities This facility also provides

the engineering support for Australian and Southeast Asia sales as well as marketing base for the Company in this

region The current rental is $102420 per annum A$96807 subject to annual CPI adjustments expiring on October 31

2016
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Item Legal Proceedings

Not applicable

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

The Common Stock of the Company has traded on the NYSE MKT formerly the American Stock Exchange under the

name ZBB Energy Corporation Symbol ZBB since June 18 2007 The following table sets forth for the periods indicated

the range of high and low reported sales price per share of our common stock as reported on NYSE MKT

High Low

2013

Fourth Quarter 0.48 0.22

Third Quarter 0.45 0.27

Second Quarter 0.35 0.18

First Quarter 0.41 0.26

2012

Fourth Quarter 0.70 0.34

Third Quarter 0.98 0.60

Second Quarter 0.89 0.51

First Quarter 1.21 0.54

2011

Fourth Quarter 1.32 0.86

Third Quarter 1.59 0.98

Second Quarter .20 0.41

First Quarter 0.93 0.43

As of September 30 2013 the Company had 827 shareholders of record These shareholders of record do not include

non-registered stockholders whose shares are held in nominee or street name

We have not declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in

the foreseeable future

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

During the year ended June 30 2013 pursuant to services agreement we issued to the subject service provider as

partial consideration for services to be rendered to us under the agreement three year warrants to purchase 106500

shares of our common stock at exercise prices of $0.42 and $1 .00 per share These warrants and the shares of Common

Stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants were issued upon the exemption from the registration provisions of the

Securities Act of 1933 provided for by Section 42 thereof for transactions not involving public offering Use of this

exemption is based on the following facts

Neither we nor any person acting on our behalf solicited any offer to buy nor sell securities by any form of general

solicitation or advertising

At the time of the purchase the service provider was an accredited investor as defined in Rule 501a of the

Securities Act

The service provider has had access to information regarding the Company and is knowledgeable about us and our

business affairs

18



The warrants were issued with restrictive legend stating that the warrants and the underlying shares of common

stock may only be disposed of pursuant to an effective registration or exemption from registration in compliance with

federal and state securities laws

Item Selected Financial Data

Not applicable

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and

related Notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Some of the information contained in this

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this report

includes forward-looking statements based on our current managements expectations There can be no assurance that

actual results outcomes or business conditions will not differ materially from those projected or suggested in such

forward-looking statements as result of various factors including the risks and uncertainties discussed in the Risk

Factors section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Overview

ZBB Energy Corporation We Us Our ZBB or the Company develops and manufactures modular scalable and

environmentally friendly power systems ZBB EnerSystem based upon the Companys proprietary zinc bromide

rechargeable electrical energy storage technology

We provide advanced electrical power management platforms targeted at the growing global need for distributed

renewable energy energy efficiency power quality and grid modernization We have developed portfolio of intelligent

power management platforms that directly integrate multiple renewable and conventional onsite generation sources with

rechargeable zinc bromide flow batteries and other storage technology We also offer advanced systems to directly

connect wind and solar equipment to the grid and systems that can form various levels of micro-grids We have also

developed hybrid vehicle control systems and power quality products These platforms provide wide range of renewable

energy solutions in global markets for utility governmental commercial industrial and residential customers

On August 30 2011 we entered into agreements providing for establishment of joint venture to develop produce sell

distribute and service advanced storage batteries and power electronics in China the Joint Venture Joint Venture

partners include ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited AnHui Xinlong Electrical Co and Wuhu Huarui Power Transmission

Transformation Engineering Co

The Joint Venture was established in November 2011 and operates through jointly owned company located in Wuhu

City Anhui Province named Anhui Meineng Store Energy Co Ltd the JV Company The JV Company will initially

assemble and ultimately manufacture the Companys products for sale in the power management industry on an exclusive

basis in mainland China and on non-exclusive basis in Hong Kong and Taiwan

The JV Company has been capitalized with approximately $13.6 million of equity capital which includes approximately

$9.5 million of cash and contribution of technology from us to the JV Company via license agreement the License

Agreement valued at approximately $4.1 million by the JV Company Our indirect interest in the JV Company equals

approximately 33%

Our investment in the JV Company was made through ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited Hong Kong limited liability

company holding company formed with PowerSav New Energy Holdings Limited Hong Kong Holdco We own 60%

of Hong Kong Holdcos equity interests We have the right to appoint majority of the members of the Board of Directors

of Hong Kong Holdco and Hong Kong Holdco has the right to appoint majority of the members of the Board of Directors

of the JV Company

Pursuant to management services agreement Hong Kong Holdco will provide certain management services to the JV

Company in exchange for management services fee equal to five percent of the JV Companys net sales for the first five

years and three percent of the JV Companys net sales for the subsequent three years

Pursuant to the License Agreement the Company has granted to the JV Company an exclusive royalty-free license to

manufacture and distribute our Version battery Module and ZBB EnerSection POWR PECC up to 250KW the

Products in mainland China in the power supply management industry and non-exclusive royalty-free license to

manufacture and distribute the Products in Hong Kong and Taiwan in the power supply management industry

Pursuant to research and development agreement the JV Company may request us to provide research and

development services upon commercially reasonable terms and conditions The JV Company would pay our fully-loaded

costs and expenses incurred in providing such services
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New Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of recently issued accounting

pronouncements

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Revenue Recognition

Application of the accounting principles related to the measuremeni and recognition of revenue requires the Company to

make judgments and estimates Even for the same product the Company often has to interpret contract terms to

determine the appropriate accounting treatments When services installation and training etc are rendered with product

sales the Company determines whether the deliverables should be treated as separate units of accounting When there

are multiple transactions with the same customer significant judgments should be made to determine whether separate

contracts should be considered as part of one arrangement according to the contracts terms and conditions When the

installed equipment is accepted by customer in different periods the Company determines whether the completed project

is able to be used by customer whether the receivable is collectible and whether revenue is recognized in stages

Revenue recognition is also impacted by various factors including the credit-worthiness of the customer Estimates of

these factors are evaluated periodically to assess the adequacy of the estimates If the estimates were changed revenue

would be impacted

Excess and Obsolete Inventory

We determine the amount of inventory that is excess and obsolete using estimates of future demand for individual

components of raw materials and finished goods

To determine excess and obsolete inventory we compare listings of existing piece parts and finished goods to future

product demand and usage requirements We record full valuation allowance for inventory quantities on hand in excess

of two years expected usage

We believe our accounting estimate related to excess and obsolete inventory is critical accounting estimate because it

requires us to make assumptions about future sales volumes and product mix which can be highly uncertain Changes in

these estimates can have material effect on our financial statements

Warranty Provision

The Companys products are generally covered by warranty for 12 months The company accrues for warranty costs as

part of cost of sales based on associated material costs technical support labor costs and associated overheads

If the company experiences an increase in warranty claims compared with the historical experience or if the cost of

servicing warranty claims is greater than expected the Companys gross margin could be adversely affected

Stock Based Compensation

The Companys Board of Directors approves grants of stock options to employees to purchase our common stock Stock

compensation expense is recorded based upon the estimated fair value of the stock option at the date of grant The

accounting estimate related to stock-based compensation is considered critical accounting estimate because

estimates are made in calculating compensation expense including expected option lives forfeiture rates and expected

volatility Expected option lives are estimated using vesting terms and contractual lives Expected forfeiture rates and

volatility are calculated using historical information Actual option lives and forfeiture rates may be different from estimates

and may result in potential future adjustments which would impact the amount of stock-based compensation expense
recorded in particular period

Results of Operations

Year ended June 30 2013 compared with the Year Ended June 30 2012

Revenue

Our revenues for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 were $7723699 and $4805568 respectively The

increase of $2918131 was the result of $5053104 increase in commercial product sales and $2134973 decrease

in engineering and development revenues as compared to the year ended June 30 2012 The increase in commercial

product sales principally consisted of sales of ZBB EnerStore and ZBB EnerSection systems which we began selling in

the quarter ended March 31 2012 and sales attributable to our hybrid motor controllers Engineering and development

revenues for fiscal 2013 period consisted primarily of revenue recognized under joint development and license

agreement Engineering and development revenues for fiscal 2012 consisted primarily of revenue recognized under the

Honam Collaboration agreement which was recognized over the performance period through June 2012
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Costs and Expenses

Total costs and expenses for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 were $19322998 and $17260864

respectively This increase of $2062134 in the year ended June 30 2013 was primarily due to the following factors

$4207569 increase in costs of product sales was due to $5 million increase in commercial product sales

$896810 decrease in costs of engineering and development sales was due to decreased activities related to

engineering and development agreements

$875485 decrease in advanced engineering and development expenses was due to decrease in ZBB EnerStore

and ZBB EnerSection product development cost and transition to commercial production and sales of these

products

Other Expense

Total Other Expense for the year ended June 30 2013 decreased by $710652 to $1008247 from $1718899 for the

year ended June 30 2012 primarily as result of $1352785 decrease in interest expense and $582150 increase in

equity in loss of investee company

Income Taxes Benefit

Benefit for income taxes during the year ended June 30 2013 decreased by $98351 to $154904 from $253255 for the

year ended June 30 2012 Benefit for income taxes represents an estimate of refundable research and development

tax credit we expect to receive from the government of Australia for the fiscal year ended June 30 2013 related to the

qualified expenditures we incurred during the year ended June 30 2013

Net Loss

Our net loss for the year ended June 30 2013 decreased by $1831 31 to $1 1878915 from the $13710226 net loss for

the year ended June 30 2012 This decrease in loss was primarily the result of increases in revenues and decreases in

expenses as described above

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception our research advanced engineering and development and operations have been primarily financed

through debt and equity financings and engineering government and other research and development contracts Total

cumulative paid-in capital as of June 30 2013 was $86349444 and $81093292 as of June 30 2012 We had

cumulative deficit of $80932824 as of June 30 2013 compared to cumulative deficit of $69053909 as of June 30

2012 At June 30 2013 we had working capital deficit of $175857 compared to June 30 2012 working capital of

$5727309 Our shareholders equity as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 was $3822202 and $10454462

respectively

On March 13 2013 the Company entered into common stock purchase agreement the Aspire Purchase Agreement

with Aspire Capital Fund LLC an Illinois limited liability company under which Aspire Capital committed for two year

period to purchase up to $10 million of ZBB Energy common stock based on prevailing market prices over period

preceding each sale subject to certain terms and conditions

On March 19 2013 the Company issued 1725490 shares to Aspire Capital in consideration for Aspire Capitals entry into

the Aspire Purchase Agreement and Aspire Capital purchased 2941 176 shares for $1000000 pursuant to the

agreement at $0.34 per share

On March 25 2013 and March 26 2013 Aspire Capital purchased total of 4963600 shares pursuant to the Aspire

Purchase Agreement at price per share of $0.30 for total purchase price of $1 500000

Aspire Capital purchased 500000 shares at per share price of $0.30 for total purchase price of $151750 on April

2013 450000 shares at per share price of $0.3331 for total purchase price of $149895 on April 12 2013 and

350000 shares at per share price of $0.2919 for total purchase price of $102165 on May 2013

The Company entered into revolving and term credit agreement of $1140000 with bank on April 12 2013 to finance

accounts receivable and inventory related to one specific foreign customer Under the terms of the agreement the

Company can borrow up to 90% of accounts receivable and 75% of inventory both for one specific foreign customer to

finance accounts receivable and inventory related to one specific foreign customer The line of credit is guaranteed by the

Export-Import Bank of the United States The interest rate for outstanding balances is prime rate plus 1.5% with floor of

4.75% The line of credit is secured by substantially all assets of the Company Advances under the line of credit are due

upon the earlier of payment by the customer or October 12 2013 The due date was extended to January 2014 on

September 27 2013 Additional advances are not permitted under the revised agreement
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At June 30 2013 our principal sources of liquidity were our cash arid cash equivalents which totaled $1156021

accounts receivable of $446925 and the Aspire Purchase Agreement Through June 30 2013 the Company had issued

total of $2903810 of shares of common stock under this facility and $7096190 remained available In accordance with

applicable NYSE MKT rules shareholder approval will be required br the Company to sell in excess of 15521706 shares

pursuant to the Aspire Purchase Agreement Through June 30 2013 the Company had issued total of 10930266

shares pursuant to the Aspire Purchase Agreement and had the ability to sell up to 4591 440 additional shares under the

Aspire Purchase Agreement The Company has not made any additional sales to Aspire under the Agreement since June

30 2013 In light of limitations on the Companys ability to continue to effectively use the Aspire Purchase Agreement

including NYSE MKT limitation and SEC registration requirements the Company has no current plans to sell additional

shares under the agreement

In June 2012 we completed an underwritten public offering of 31600000 shares of common stock at price to the public

of $0.38 per share for net proceeds of $10.7 million In connection with the offering the Company granted the underwriter

warrants to purchase 2895303 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.475 per share These warrants expire

on June 13 2017 The estimated fair value of these warrants was $1024726 as determined using the Black-Scholes

methodology assuming estimated volatility of 100.86% risk-free interest rate of 0.71% expected dividend yield of 0.0%
This amount was recorded as both an increase to additional paid-in capital and as non-cash issuance cost of the

financing transaction During the year ended June 30 2012 we also sold an additional 11478666 shares of common

stock in various transactions for net proceeds of $4.8 million

In July 2012 the underwriter for the Companys June 2012 underwritten public offering exercised substantially all of its

over-allotment option and purchased an additional 4591287 shares of the Companys common stock The net proceeds

to the Company from this issuance were $1.6 million after deducting approximately $143000 in offering expenses

We believe that cash and cash equivalents on hand at June 30 2013 pIus proceeds from $3 million preferred equity

financing that closed on September 27 2013 and other potential scurces of cash will be sufficient to fund our current

operations through the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 and we will require additional investment capital or other

funding to maintain our operations thereafter Accordingly the Company is actively exploring various alternatives including

strategic partnership transactions that may be available to the Company We are currently in active discussions with

several parties regarding potential strategic partnership and/or license and development transactions However we have

no binding commitments for any transactions at this time and there can be no assurance that we will consummate any

transaction If we are unable to obtain such needed capital we may not be able to

remain in operation

execute our growth plan

take advantage of future opportunities or

respond to customers and competition

Operating Activities

Our operating activities used net cash of $10258386 for the year ended June 30 2013 Cash used in operations

resulted from net loss of $12452642 reduced by $3155067 in non-cash adjustments and increased by $960811 in

net increases in working capital Non-cash adjustments included $785260 of stock-based compensation expense and

$1530473 of depreciation and amortization expense Net changes in working capital were primarily due to an increase

in customer deposits of $878953 offset by decreases in accounts payable of $1 328097 and accrued expenses of

$467475

Investing Activities

Our investing activities used net cash of $137601 for the year ended June 30 2013 used for the purchase of property

and equipment

Financing Activities

Our financing activities provided net cash of $3730936 for the year ended June 30 2013 Net cash provided by

financing activities was comprised principally of $4648499 in proceeds from the issuance of common stock less

common stock issuance costs of $177607 We had repayments of $1654593 of principal on bank loans and notes

payable less proceeds of $938250 from the issuance of notes payable

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30 2013

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable for smaller reporting companies
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERE PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders Audit Committee and Board of Directors

ZBB Energy Corporation

Menomonee Falls Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ol ZBB Energy Corporation the Company as of June

30 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive loss changes in equity and

cash flows for the years then ended These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of its

internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall consolidated

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of ZBB Energy Corporation as of June 30 2013 and 2012 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the

years then ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as

going concern As described in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Companys recurring operating

losses operating cash flow deficits and accumulated deficit of $80932824 raise substantial doubt about the Companys

ability to continue as going concern In order to sustain continued operations and meet its obligations the Company is

dependent on the availability of future funding and achieving profitability Managements plans in regard to these matters

are also described in Note to the consolidated financial statements The consolidated financial statements do not

include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

September 30 2013
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ZBB ENERGY CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash on deposit

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Prepaid and other current assets

Refundable income tax credit

Total current assets

Long-term assets

Property plant and equipment net

Investment in investee company

Intangible assets net

Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Bank loans and notes payable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Customer deposits

Accrued compensation and benefits

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Bank loans and notes payable

Total liabilities

Equity

Series preferred stock $0.01 par value $10000 face value

10000000 authorized and no shares issued

Common stock $0.01 par value 150000000 authorized

88538801 and 72977248 shares issued and outstanding

as of June 30 2013 and 2012 respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total ZBB Energy Corporation Equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Year ended June 30

2013 2012

1096621 7763217

60000 60000

446925 480563

2459776 2912207

224542 187448

137228 185545

4425092 11588980

5179707 5484545

2304122 3083889

411073 1143122

803079 803079

13123073 22103615

885786 1022826

570932 899029

785532 1289138

2194262 1315309

164437 335369

4600949 5861671

2395802 2915134

6996751 8776805

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

885389 729773

85464055 80363519

80932824 69053909

1594418 1584921
3822202 10454462

2304120 2872348

6126322 13326810

13.123.073 22103615

25



ZBB ENERGY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues

Product sales

Engineering and development

Total Revenues

Costs and Expenses

Cost of product sales

Cost of engineering and development

Advanced engineering and development

Selling general and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Total Costs and Expenses

Loss from Operations

Other Income Expense

Equity in loss of investee company

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income expense ______________________ _________________
Total Other Income Expense

Loss before provision benefit for Income Taxes

Provision benefit for Income Taxes
______________________ _________________

Net loss

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest
_______________________ __________________

Net Loss Attributable to ZBB Energy Corporation
____________________ ________________

Net Loss per share

Basic and diluted 0.15 0.37

Weighted average shares-basic and diluted 80410005 37156390

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Year ended June 30

2013

7305516

418183

7723699

6275277

153762

5266418

6235508

1392033

19322998

11599299

779768
2896

186375
45000

1008247

12607546

154904
12452642

573727

11878915

2012

2252412

2553156

4805568

2067708

050572

6141903

6325520

6751 61

17260864

12455296

197618
13616

1539160
4263

1718899

14174195

253255
13920940

210714

13710226
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ZBB ENERGY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

Net loss

Foreign exchange translation adjustments

Comprehensive loss

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to ZBB Energy Corporation

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Year ended June 30

2013

12452642
9497

12462139
573727

11888412

2012

13920940
12169

13933109
210714

13722395
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ZBB Energy Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Accumulated

Preferred Stock Common Stock Notes Other

Additional Receivable Treasury Accumulated Comprehensive Noncontrolling

Shares Amount Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Common Stock Stock Deficit Loss Interest

Balance July 2011 355.4678 3715470 29912415 299124 60777286 3707799 11136 55343683 1572752

Net loss 13710226 210714
Net translation adjustment 12169
Warrants issued in connection

with convertible debt 423672

Beneficial conversion on

convertible debt 418585

Issuance of common stock net of

costs and
underwriting

fees 31872169 388962 14072955

Warrants issued to underwriters 1024726

Issuance of preferred stock

net of issuance costs 219.6602 2197240 11156497 41326 2053413 2187330
Stock-based compensation 50000 500 1586298

Retirementoftreasuryshares 13833 139 10997 11136

Interest on notes receivable

common stock 529651 529651
Accretion of dividends on

preferred stock 523379 523379

Redemption of Preferred Stock 575.1280 6436089 11309 6424780

Issuance of subsidiary shares to

noncontrolling interest
_______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ 3083062

Balance June 30 2012 72977248 729773 80363519 69053909 1584921 2872348

Net loss 11878915 573727

Net translation adjustment 9497
Issuance of common stock net of

rnctq nr1 n1prwritinn fq 55A1 555t 4t1 527R

Stock-based compensation 785260

Issuance of subsidiary shares to

noncontrolling interest
_______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________

5500

BalanceJune3O2013 ____________ 88538801 885389 85464055 ____________ 80932824 1594418 2304120

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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ZBB Energy Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June30

798424

732049

785260

779768

14566

45000

33638

96445

51660
48317

1328097

170932

467475
878953

10258386

137601

137601

938250

1654593

29113

4648499

177607
5500

3730936

1545
6666596
7.763.217

2012

13920940

929776

745385

1586798

197618

66500

1069950

308941

1326357

130986
20905

937808

45373

618026

213173
9724068

1647450
3281507

60000

4988957

2465000

3243184
227693

2197240

17138150

1810598
3083062

19601977

36330

4852622
2.910.595

Cash paid for interest

Cash received from income tax credit

Supplemental non-cash investing and financing activities

Conversion of debenture notes payable to common stock

Inventory transferred to assets held for lease

Interest deferred and added to principal balance of note payable

Issuance of common stock for discounted notes receivable

Issuance of warrants as consideration for equity issuance costs

Redemption of preferred stock with notes receivable common stock

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

2013

12452642

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Stock-based compensation

Equity in loss of investee company

Payment of interest with common stock

Amortization of discounts and debt issuance costs on notes payable

Non-cash expense attributed to accretion of note payable

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaids and other current assets

Refundable income taxes

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits

Accrued expenses

Customer deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditures for property and equipment

Investment in investee company

Deposits of restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable

Repayments of bank loans and notes payable

Notes payable issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of Series preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Common stock issuance costs

Proceeds from noncontrolling interest

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 1096621 7763217

173876

198309

355986

44084

278610

223703

1184250

2187330

1024726

6436089
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ZBB ENERGY CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30 2013 and 2012

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

ZBB Energy Corporation ZBB we us our or the Company develops and manufactures distributed energy

storage solutions based upon the Companys proprietary zinc bromide rechargeable electrical energy storage technology

and proprietary power electronics systems developer and manufacturer of modular scalable and environmentally

friendly power systems ZBB EnerSystem and related products ZBB was incorporated in Wisconsin in 1998 and is

headquartered in Wisconsin USA with offices also located in Perth Western Australia

The Company provides advanced electrical power management platforms targeted at the growing global need for

distributed renewable energy energy efficiency power quality and grid modernization The Company has developed

portfolio of intelligent power management platforms that directly integrate multiple renewable and conventional onsite

generation sources with rechargeable zinc bromide flow batteries and other storage technology The Company also offers

advanced systems to directly connect wind and solar equipment to the grid and systems that can form various levels of

micro-grids hybrid vehicle control systems and power quality regulation solutions Together these platforms provide

wide range of renewable energy system solutions in global markets for utility governmental commercial industrial and

residential customers

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and those of its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Tier Electronics LLC which operates manufacturing facilities in Menomonee Falls Wisconsin ZBB Energy Pty Ltd

formerly known as ZBB Technologies Ltd which has an advanced engineering and development facility in Perth

Australia and its sixty percent owned subsidiary ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited located in Hong Kong which was

formed in connection with the Companys investment in China joint venture former wholly-owned subsidiary ZBB

Technologies Inc was merged with and into ZBB on January 2012 and had no effect on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority-

owned subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents The

Company maintains its cash deposits in fully insured accounts at financial institutions predominately in the United States

Australia and Hong Kong The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts

Restricted Cash on Deposit

The Company had $60000 in restricted cash on deposit as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 respectively as

collateral for certain credit arrangements

Accounts Receivable

The Company records allowances for doubtful accounts based on customer-specific analysis and general matters such as

current assessments of past due balances and economic conditions The Company writes off accounts receivable

against the allowance when they become uncollectible Accounts receivable are stated net of an allowance for doubtful

accounts of $0 and $80000 as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is computed using standard cost which approximates actual

cost on first-in first-out basis The Company provides inventory write-downs based on excess and obsolete inventories

determined primarily by future demand forecasts The write-down is measured as the difference between the cost of the

inventory and market based upon assumptions about future demand and charged to the provision for inventory which is

component of cost of sales At the point of the loss recognition new lower cost basis for that inventory is established

and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not result in the restoration or increase in that newly established

cost basis
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Property Plant and Equipment

Land building equipment computers and furniture and fixtures are recorded at cost Maintenance repairs and

betterments are charged to expense as incurred Depreciation is provided for all plant and equipment on straight line

basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets The estimated useful lives used for each class of depreciable asset

are

Estimated Useful

Lives

Manufacturing equipment years

Office equipment years

Assets held for lease 18 months

Building and improvements 40 years

The Company completed review of the estimated useful lives of specific assets during the year ended June 30 2013

and determined that there were no changes in the estimated useful lives of assets For the year ended June 30 2012 the

Company determined that as result of changes in the Companys products and the related production processes actual

lives for certain assets were shorter than the estimated useful lives for depreciation purposes Therefore the Company

decreased the estimated useful lives of certain equipment The effect of this change in estimate increased depreciation

expense and net loss for the year ended June 30 2012 by $319000 and increased the net loss per share basic and

diluted for the year ended June 30 2012 by $.01 per share

Investment in Investee Company

Investee companies that are not consolidated but over which the Company exercises significant influence are accounted

for under the equity method of accounting Whether or not the Company exercises significant influence with respect to an

investee depends on an evaluation of several factors including among others representation on the investee companys

board of directors and ownership level which is generally 20% to 50% interest in the voting securities of the investee

company Under the equity method of accounting an investee companys accounts are not reported in the Companys

consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations however the Companys share of the earnings or losses of

the investee company is reflected in the caption Equity in loss of investee company in the consolidated statements of

operations The Companys carrying value in an equity method investee company is reported in the caption Investment in

investee company in the Companys consolidated balance sheets

When the Companys carrying value in an equity method investee company is reduced to zero no further losses are

recorded in the Companys consolidated financial statements unless the Company guaranteed obligations of the investee

company or has committed additional funding When the investee company subsequently reports income the Company
will not record its share of such income until it equals the amount of its share of losses not previously recognized

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets generally result from business acquisitions The Company accounted for the acquisition of substantially

all of the net assets of Tier Electronics LLC by assigning the purchase price to identifiable tangible and intangible assets

and liabilities Assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair values Intangible assets

consist of non-compete agreement license agreement and trade secrets

Amortization is recorded for intangible assets with determinable lives Intangible assets are amortized using the straight

line method over the three year estimated useful lives of the respective assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized as the excess cost of an acquired entity over the net amount assigned to assets acquired and

liabilities assumed Goodwill is not amortized but reviewed for impairment annually as of June 30 or more frequently if

events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may be impaired These conditions could include

significant change in the business climate legal factors operating performance indicators competition or sale or

disposition of significant portion of reporting unit

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update ASU
to Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other This ASU amended the

guidance in ASC Topic 350-20 on testing for goodwill impairment The revised guidance allows entities testing for goodwill

impairment to have the option of performing qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of the reporting unit

If the Company determines on the basis of qualitative factors that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the

reporting unit is less than the carrying amount the two-step impairment test is required If we cannot determine on the

basis of qualitative factors that goodwill is not impaired or if we choose to bypass the qualitative assessment the two-

step impairment test is required
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The first step of the impairment test requires the comparing of reporting units fair value to its carrying value If the

carrying value is less than the fair value no impairment exists and the second step is not performed If the carrying value

is higher than the fair value there is an indication that impairment may exist and the second step must be performed to

compute the amount of the impairment In the second step the impairment is computed by estimating the fair values of all

recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities of the reporting unit and comparing the implied fair value of reporting

unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that units goodwill The Company determined fair value as evidenced by market

capitalization and concluded that there was no need for an impairment charge as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

The ASU does not change how goodwill is calculated or assigned to reporting units nor does it revise the requirement to

test annually for impairment The ASU is limited to goodwill and does not amend the annual requirement for testing other

indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment We adopted this ASU as of our 2012 goodwill impairment testing The

ASU did not have any impact on our consolidated financial statements or the resulting impairment testing for the fiscal

years ended 2013 and 2012

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360 Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets the Company assesses

potential impairments to its long-lived assets including property plant and equipment and intangible assets when there is

evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

If such an indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the assets carrying value Any excess of

the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed in the statement of operations In assessing value in

use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate Management has

determined that there were no long-lived assets impaired as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 respectively see Note

Warranty Obligations

The Company typically warrants its products for twelve months after installation or eighteen months after date of

shipment whichever first occurs Warranty costs are provided for estimated claims and charged to cost of product sales

as revenue is recognized Warranty obligations are also evaluated quarterly to determine reasonable estimate for the

replacement of potentially defective materials of all energy storage systems that have been shipped to customers

While the Company actively engages in monitoring and improving its evolving battery and production technologies there

is only limited product history and relatively short time frame available to test and evaluate the rate of product failure

Should actual product failure rates differ from the Companys estimates revisions are made to the estimated rate of

product failures and resulting changes to the liability for warranty obligations In addition from time to time specific

warranty accruals may be made if unforeseen technical problems arise

As of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 included in the Companys accrued expenses were $479873 and $418557

respectively related to warranty obligations Such amounts are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets

The following is summary of accrued warranty activity

Beginning balance

Accruals for warranties during the period

Settlements during the period

Adjustments relating to preexisting warranties

Ending balance

Revenue Recognition

Year Ended June 30

20122013

418557

404096

95543
247237
479873

413203

196753

126902
64497
418557

Revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence of contractual arrangement exits delivery has occurred or

services have been rendered the sellers price to buyer is fixed and determinable and collectability is reasonably

assured The portion of revenue related to installation and final acceptance is deferred until such installation and final

customer acceptance are completed

For sales arrangements containing multiple elements products or services revenue relating to undelivered elements is

deferred at the estimated fair value until delivery of the deferred elements To be considered separate element the

product or service in question must represent separate unit under SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 and fulfill the
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following criteria the delivered items has value to the customer on standalone basis there is objective and reliable

evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items and if the arrangement includes general right of return relative to

the delivered items delivery or performance of the undelivered items is considered probable and substantially in our

control It the arrangement does not meet all criteria above the entire amount of the transaction is deferred until all

elements are delivered Revenue from time and materials based service arrangements is recognized as the service is

performed

The portion of revenue related to engineering and development is recognized ratably upon delivery of the goods or

services pertaining to the underlying contractual arrangement or revenue is recognized as certain activities are performed

by the Company over the estimated performance period

The Company charges shipping and handling fees when products are shipped or delivered to customer and includes

such amounts in net revenues The Company reports its revenues net of estimated returns and allowances

Revenues from government funded research and development contracts are recognized proportionally as costs are

incurred and compared to the estimated total research and development costs for each contract In many cases the

Company is reimbursed only portion of the costs incurred or to be incurred on the contract Government funded

research and development contracts are generally multi-year cost-reimbursement and/or cost-share type contracts The

Company is generally reimbursed for reasonable and allocable costs up to the reimbursement limits set by the contract

Total revenues of $7723699 and $4805568 were recognized for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

respectively and were comprised of four significant customers 20% 15% 15% and 13% of total revenues and two

significant customers for 2012 59% and 17% of total revenues The Company had two significant customers with

outstanding accounts receivable balances $148479 and $146200 33% and 33% of accounts receivable net and one

significant customer with an outstanding accounts receivable balance of $146702 31% of accounts receivable net at

June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 respectively

Engineering and Development Revenues

On April 2011 the Company entered into Collaboration Agreement the Collaboration Agreement with Honam

Petrochemical Corporation Honam division of LOTTE Petrochemical pursuant to which the Company agreed with

Honam to collaborate on the further technical development of the Companys third generation zinc bromide flow battery

module the Version Battery Module Pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement Honam was required to pay the

Company total of $3000000 as follows $1 000000 within 10 days following the execution of the Collaboration

Agreement subsequently received on April 2011 $500000 by June 30 2011 subsequently received on June 30

2011 $1200000 by October 10 2011 subsequently received on October 10 2011 and $300000 within 10 days

after single Version Battery Module test station is set up at Honams research and development center subsequently

received on March 30 2012 The Company had recognized $3000000 as revenue as of June 30 2012 based on

performance milestones achieved Pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement the parties were required to negotiate

license agreement under which upon the completion of the collaboration project and the receipt by the Company of all

payments due under the Collaboration Agreement the Company granted to Honam fully paid-up exclusive and

royalty-free license to sell and manufacture the Version Battery Module in Korea and non-exclusive rights to sell the

Version Battery Module in Japan Thailand Taiwan Malaysia Vietnam and Singapore In connection with such non-

exclusive rights Honam is required to pay us royalty

On December 13 2011 the Company entered into joint development and license agreement with global technology

company to jointly develop flow batteries The objective of the joint development agreement is to develop low cost high

energy density grid scale flow battery stacks and systems that could lead to significant cost reduction for grid level

storage Under the terms of the joint development agreement the Company was to receive $175000 in December 2011

subsequently received $175000 in December 2011 payments of $75000 every three months starting April 2012

through January 2013 subsequently received $75000 during April June and October of 2012 and $100000 every three

months starting in January 2013 through October 2013 subsequently received $200000 as of April 2013 The global

technology company also purchased 933333 shares of the Companys common stock in December 2011 for $700000

The Company recognizes revenue under this agreement upon achievement of certain performance milestones The

Company recognized $400000 and $200000 of revenue under this agreement in the years ended June 30 2013 and

June 30 2012 respectively

Milestone payments under collaborative arrangements are triggered by the results of the Companys engineering and

development efforts Milestones related to the Companys development-based activities may include initiation of various

phases of engineering and development activities successful completion of phase of development or delivery of

specified equipment or products Due to the uncertainty involved in meeting these development-based milestones the

development-based milestones are considered to be substantial i.e not just achieved through passage of time at the

inception of the collaboration agreement In addition the amounts of the payments assigned thereto are considered to be

commensurate with the enhancement of the value of the delivered intellectual property as result of our performance
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The Companys involvement is necessary to the achievement of development-based milestones The Company accounts

for development-based milestones as revenue upon achievement cf the substantive milestone events In addition upon

the achievement of development-based milestone events the Company has no future performance obligations related to

any milestone payments

Included in engineering and development revenues were $400000 and $2500000 respectively for the years ended

June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 related to the collaborative agreements Engineering and development costs related to

the collaboration agreements totaled $153762 and $1050572 for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

As of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 the Company had no unbilled amounts from engineering and development

contracts in process The Company had received $45300 and $129950 in customer payments for engineering and

development contracts representing deposits in advance of performance of the contracted work as of June 30 2013 and

June 30 2012 respectively

Advanced Engineering and Development Expenses

The Company expenses advanced engineering and development costs as incurred These costs consist primarily of

labor overhead and materials to build prototype units materials for testing development of manufacturing processes and

include consulting fees and other costs

To the extent these costs are separately identifiable incurred and funded by advanced engineering and development type

agreements with outside parties they are shown separately on the consolidated statements of operations as cost of

engineering and development

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures all Share-Based Payments including grants of stock options restricted shares and restricted

stock units to be recognized in its consolidated statement of operations based on their fair values on the grant date which

is consistent with FASB ASC Topic 718 Stock Compensation guidelines

Accordingly the Company measures share-based compensation cost for all share-based awards at the fair value on the

grant date and recognition of share-based compensation over the service period for awards that are expected to vest The

fair value of stock options is determined based on the number of shares granted and the price of the shares at grant and

calculated based on the Black-Scholes valuation model

The Company compensates its outside directors primarily with restricted stock units RSUs rather than cash The grant

date fair value of the restricted stock unit awards is determined using the closing stock price of the Companys common

stock on the day prior to the date of the grant with the compensation expense amortized over the vesting period of

restricted stock unit awards net of estimated forfeitures

The Company only recognizes expense to its statements of operations for those options or shares that are expected

ultimately to vest using two attribution methods to record expense the straight-line method for grants with only service-

based vesting or the graded-vesting method which considers each performance period for all other awards see Note

Income Taxes

The Company records deferred income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740 Accounting for Income Taxes

This ASC Topic requires recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the

tax basis of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial statements based upon the

enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse The Company establishes

valuation allowance when necessary to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amount expected to be realized There

were no net deferred income tax assets recorded as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

The Company applies more-likely-than-not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties as required under FASB ASC

Topic 740 which only allows the recognition of those tax benefits that have greater than fifty percent likelihood of being

sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities

The Companys U.S Federal income tax returns for the years ended June 30 2010 through June 30 2013 and the

Companys Wisconsin and Australian income tax returns for the years ended June 30 2010 through June 30 2013 are

subject to examination by taxing authorities

Foreign Currency

The Company uses the United States dollar as its functional and reporting currency while the Australian dollar and Hong

Kong dollar are the functional currencies of its foreign subsidiaries Assets and liabilities of the Companys foreign

subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars at exchange rates that are in effect at the balance sheet date while

equity accounts are translated at historical exchange rates Income and expense items are translated at average
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exchange rates which were applicable during the reporting period Translation adjustments are accumulated in

accumulated other comprehensive loss as separate component of equity in the consolidated balance sheets

Loss per Share

The Company follows the FASB ASC Topic 260 Earnings per Share provisions which require the reporting of both

basic and diluted earnings loss per share Basic earnings loss per share is computed by dividing net income loss

available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted

earnings net loss per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common

stock were exercised or converted into common stock In accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 260 any anti-dilutive

effects on net income loss per share are excluded For the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 there were

16693879 and 13690030 shares of common stock underlying options restricted stock units and warrants that are

excluded respectively

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Fair Value

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and

accounts receivable

The Company maintains significant cash deposits primarily with three financial institutions All deposits are fully insured

as of June 30 2013 The Company has not previously experienced any losses on such deposits Additionally the

Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit ratings of these institutions as part of its banking strategy

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to accelerated payment terms in current

customer contracts and creditworthiness of the current customer base

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable other current assets accounts payable and

accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments The carrying value of bank

loans and notes payable approximate fair value based on their terms which reflect market conditions existing as of June

30 2013 and June 30 2012

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses

during the reporting period It is reasonably possible that the estimates we have made may change in the near future

Significant estimates underlying the accompanying consolidated financial statements include those related to

the timing of revenue recognition

the allowance for doubtful accounts

provisions for excess and obsolete inventory

the lives and recoverability of property plant and equipment and other long-lived assets including goodwill and other

intangible assets

contract costs and reserves

warranty obligations

income tax valuation allowances

stock-based compensation and

valuation of warrants

Reclassifications

Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation

Segment Information

The Company has determined that it operates as one reportable segment

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB or

other standard setting bodies that are adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date Unless otherwise

discussed the Company believes that the impact of recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have

material impact on our financial position or results of operations upon adoption

In July 2013 the FASB issued ASU 2013-11 Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When Net Operating Loss

Carryforward Similar Tax Loss or Tax Credit Carryforward Exists which requires an unrecognized tax benefit to be
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presented in the financial statements as reduction to deferred tax asset for net operating loss carryforward similar

tax loss or tax credit carryforward To the extent the tax benefit is not available at the reporting date under the

governing tax law or if the entity does not intend to use the deferred tax asset for such purpose the unrecognized tax

benefit should be presented as liability and not combined with deferred tax assets ASU 2013-11 is effective for annual

periods and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15 2013 The amendments are to be applied

to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist as of the effective date and may be applied retrospectively to each prior

reporting period presented The Company expects no material impact to its financial statements as result of adopting

this provision

In April 2013 the FASB issued ASU 2013-07 Presentation of Financial Statements Topic 205 Liquidation Basis of

Accounting The amendments require an entity to prepare its financial statements using the liquidation basis of accounting

when liquidation is imminent Liquidation is imminent when the likelihood is remote that the entity will return from

liquidation and either plan for liquidation is approved by the person or persons with the authority to make such plan

effective and the likelihood is remote that the execution of the plan will be blocked by other parties or plan for

liquidation is being imposed by other forces for example involuntary bankruptcy If plan for liquidation was specified in

the entitys governing documents from the entitys inception for example limited-life entities the entity should apply the

liquidation basis of accounting only if the approved plan for liquidation differs from the plan for liquidation that was

specified at the entitys inception The amendments require financial statements prepared using the liquidation basis of

accounting to present relevant information about an entitys expected resources in liquidation by measuring and

presenting assets at the amount of the expected cash proceeds from liquidation The entity should include in its

presentation of assets any items it had not previously recognized under U.S GAAP but that it expects to either sell in

liquidation or use in settling liabilities for example trademarks The amendments are effective for entities that determine

liquidation is imminent during annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2013 and interim reporting periods

therein Entities should apply the requirements prospectively from the day that liquidation becomes imminent Early

adoption is permitted The adoption is not expected to have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements in its present condition

In March 2013 the FASB issued ASU 2013-05 Foreign Currency Matters Topic 830 Parents Accounting for the

Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Group of Assets within Foreign Entity

or of an Investment in Foreign Entity These amendments provide guidance on releasing cumulative translation

adjustments when reporting entity parent ceases to have controlling financial interest in subsidiary or group of

assets that is non-profit activity or business within foreign entity In addition these amendments provide guidance on

the release of cumulative translation adjustments in partial sales of equity method investments and in step acquisitions

The amendments are effective for fiscal years and interim reporting periods within those years beginning after December

15 2013 The amendments should be applied prospectively to derecognition events occurring after the effective date

Prior periods should not be adjusted Early adoption is permitted If an entity elects to early adopt the amendments it

should apply them as of the beginning of the entitys fiscal year of adoption The Company is required to adopt this

standard beginning July 2014 The Company does not anticipate these changes to have an impact on its consolidated

financial statements

In February 2013 the FASB issued ASU 2013-04 Liabilities Topic 405 Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several

Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the Reporting Date These amendments

provide guidance for the recognition measurement and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several liability

arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this guidance is fixed at the reporting date

except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in U.S GAAP Examples of obligations within this guidance are

debt arrangements other contractual obligations and settled litigation and judicial rulings The amendments are effective

for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15 2013 These amendments shall be

applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented for those obligations within the scope of this Subtopic that exist at the

beginning of an entitys fiscal year of adoption Early adoption is permitted The adoption of these amendments is not

expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In February 2013 the FASB issued ASU No 201 3-02 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Reporting of Amounts

Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income The amendments do not change the current

requirements for reporting net income or other comprehensive income in financial statements However the amendments

require an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income

by component In addition an entity is required to present either on the face of the statement where net income is

presented or in the notes significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the

respective line items of net income but only if the amount reclassified is required under U.S GAAP to be reclassified to

net income in its entirety in the same reporting period For other amounts that are not required under U.S GAAP to be

reclassified in their entirety to net income an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under U.S

GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts This guidance is effective prospectively for reporting periods
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beginning after December 15 2012 The Company adopted this guidance in the third quarter of fiscal year 2013 This new

guidance did not impact the Companys presentation financial position and results of operations

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASC update No 2012-02 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-

Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment ASC 2012-02 Under the amendments in this update company has the option

first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more

likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as basis for determining whether it is necessary to

perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with Topic 350 The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as

having likelihood of more than 50 percent If after assessing the qualitative factors company determines it does not

meet the more-likely-than-not threshold company is required to perform the quantitative impairment test by calculating

the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the asset The

amendments in this update were effective for annual and interim impairment test performed for fiscal years beginning after

September 15 2012 early adoption permitted The Company adopted this guidance in the second quarter of fiscal year

2013 The adoption of this update had no impact on its financial statements In September 2011 the FASB issued an

update to ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other This ASU amended the guidance in ASC Topic 350-20 on

testing for goodwill impairment The revised guidance allows entities testing for goodwill impairment to have the option of

performing qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of the reporting unit The ASU did not change how

goodwill is calculated or assigned to reporting units nor did it revise the requirement to test annually for impairment The

ASU was limited to goodwill and did not amend the annual requirement for testing other indefinite-lived intangible assets

for impairment We adopted this ASU as of our 2012 goodwill impairment testing The adoption of this ASU did not impact

our consolidated financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to the presentation of comprehensive income loss that

eliminated the current option to report other comprehensive income loss and its components in the statement of changes

in equity We elected to present items of net income loss and other comprehensive income loss in two consecutive

statements This guidance was adopted and effective for our interim reporting period ended September 30 2012

NOTE CHINA JOINT VENTURE

On August 30 2011 the Company entered into agreements providing for establishment of joint venture to develop

produce sell distribute and service advanced storage batteries and power electronics in China the Joint Venture

Joint venture partners include ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited Holdco AnHui Xinlong Electrical Co and Wuhu Huarui

Power Transmission and Transformation Engineering Co The Joint Venture was established upon receipt of certain

governmental approvals from China which were received in November 2011

The Joint Venture operates through jointly-owned Chinese company located in Wuhu City Anhui Province named Anhui

Meineng Store Energy Co Ltd AHMN AHMN intends to initially assemble and ultimately manufacture the

Companys products for sale in the power management industry on an exclusive basis in mainland China and on non-

exclusive basis in Hong Kong and Taiwan

In connection with the Joint Venture on August 30 2011 the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into the

following agreements

Joint Venture Agreement of Anhui Meineng Store Energy Co Ltd the China JV Agreement by and between ZBB

PowerSav Holdings Limited Hong Kong limited liability company Holdco and Anhui Xinrui Investment Co Ltd

Chinese limited liability company and

Limited Liability Company Agreement of ZBB PowerSav Holdings Limited by and between ZBB Cayman Corporation

and PowerSav New Energy Holdings Limited the Holdco Agreement

In connection with the Joint Venture upon establishment of AHMN the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered

into the following agreements

Management Services Agreement by and between AHMN and Holdco the Management Services Agreement

License Agreement by and between Holdco and AHMN the License Agreement and

Research and Development Agreement by and between the Company and AHMN the Research and Development

Agreement

Pursuant to the China JV Agreement AHMN was capitalized with approximately $13.6 million of equity capital The

Companys only capital contributions to the Joint Venture were the contribution of technology to AHMN via the License

Agreement and $200000 in cash The Companys indirect interest in AHMN equals approximately 33%

The Companys investment in AHMN was made through Holdco Pursuant to the Holdco Agreement the Company

contributed to Holdco technology via license agreement with an agreed upon value of approximately $4.1 million and

$200000 in cash in exchange for 60% equity interest and PowerSav agreed to contribute to Holdco $3.3 million in cash

in exchange for 40% equity interest The initial capital contributions consisting of the Companys technology
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contribution and one half of required cash contributions were made in December 2011 The subsequent capital

contributions consisting of one half of the required cash contribution were made on May 16 2012 For financial

reporting purposes Holdcos assets and liabilities are consolidated with those of the Company and PowerSavs 40%

interest in Holdco is included in the Companys consolidated financal statements as noncontrolling interest For the

years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 AHMN had net loss of $2649763 and $973189 respectively

The Companys basis in the technology contributed to Holdco is $0 due to U.S GAAP requirements related to research

and development expenditures The difference of approximately $4.1 million in the Companys basis in this technology

and the valuation of the technology by AHMN is accounted for by the Company through the elimination of the amortization

expense recognized by AHMN related to the technology

The Company has the right to appoint majority of the members of the Board of Directors of Hong Kong Holdco and

Hong Kong Holdco has the right to appoint majority of the members of the Board of Directors of AHMN

Pursuant to the Management Services Agreement Holdco will provide certain management services to AHMN in

exchange for management services fee equal to five percent of AHMNs net sales for the first five years and three

percent of AHMNs net sales for the subsequent three years

Pursuant to the License Agreement Holdco granted to AHMN an exclusive royalty-free license to manufacture and

distribute the Companys ZBB EnerStore zinc bromide flow battery version three V3 50KW and ZBB EnerSection

power and energy control center up to 250KW the Products in mainland China in the power supply management

industry and non-exclusive royalty-free license to manufacture and distribute the Products in Hong Kong and Taiwan

in the power supply management industry

Pursuant to the Research and Development Agreement AHMN may request the Company to provide research and

development services upon commercially reasonable terms and conditions AHMN would pay the Companys fully-loaded

costs and expenses incurred in providing such services

The Company had product sales of $987621 and $694662 to AHMN during the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30

2012 respectively

The operating results for AHMN for the year ended June 30 2013 and the eight month period ended June 30 2012 are

summarized as follows

Year Ended Eight Months Ended

June 30 2013 June 30 2012

Revenues

Gross Profit

Income loss from operations 2615055 992512
Net Income loss 2649763 973189

NOTE 3- GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern which

contemplates that the Company will be able to realize assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business

Accordingly they do not give effect to any adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be required to

liquidate its assets The Company incurred net loss of $1 1878915 attributable to ZBB Energy Corporation for the year

ended June 30 2013 and as of June 30 2013 has an accumulated deficit of $80932824 and total ZBB Energy

Corporation equity of $3822202 The ability of the Company to settle its total liabilities of $6996751 and to continue as

going concern is dependent upon obtaining additional financing closing additional sales orders and achieving

profitability The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from

the outcome of these uncertainties

We believe that cash and cash equivalents on hand at June 30 2013 plus proceeds from $3 million preferred equity

financing that closed on September 27 2013 Note 15 and other potential sources of cash will be sufficient to fund our

current operations through the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 and we will require additional investment capital or other

funding to maintain our operations thereafter Accordingly the Company is actively exploring various alternatives including

strategic partnership transactions that may be available to the Company We are currently in active discussions with

several parties regarding potential strategic partnership and/or license and development transactions If the Company is

unable to obtain additional required funding the Companys financial condition and results of operations may be materially

adversely affected and the Company may not be able to continue operations
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NOTE 4INVENTORIES

Inventories are comprised of the following as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

June 30 2013 June 30 2012

Rawmaterials 1181557 2396545

Work in progress 1278219 515662

Total 2459776 2912207

NOTE PROPERTY PLANT EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment are comprised of the following as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

June 30 2013 June 30 2012

Land 217000 217000

Building and improvements 3520872 3520872

Manufacturing equipment 3819533 4597020

Office equipment 403541 313928

Assets held for lease 355986

Construction in process 24300 31050

Total at cost 8341232 8679870

Less accumulated depreciation 3161525 3195325

Property Plant Equipment Net 5179707 5484545

NOTE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are comprised of the following as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

June 30 2013 June 302012

Non-compete agreement 310888 310888

License agreement 288087 288087

Trade secrets 1599122 1599122

Total atcost 2198097 2198097

Less accumulated amortization 1787024 1054975

Intangible Assets Net 411073 1143122

Estimated amortization expense for fiscal period ending June 30 2014 is $411073

NOTE 7- GOODWILL

The Company acquired ZBB Technologies Inc former wholly-owned subsidiary through series of transactions in

March 1996 ZBB Technologies Inc was subsequently merged with and into ZBB Energy Corporation on January

2012 The goodwill amount of $1 .134 million the difference between the price paid for ZBB Technologies Inc and the

net assets of the acquisition amortized through fiscal 2002 resulted in the net goodwill amount of $803079 as of June

30 2013 and June 30 2012

NOTE 8- BANK LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE

The Companys debt consisted of the following as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

June 30 2013 June 30 2012

Bank loans and notes payable-current
885786 1022826

Bank loans and notes payable-long term 2395802 2915134

Total 3281588 3937960
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Bank loans and notes payable consisted of the following at June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

June 30 2013 June 30 2012

Bank loan payable of principal and interest at rate equal to prime plus 1.50% as

defined subject to floor of 4.75% with any principal due at maturity on January

2014 collateralized by accounts receivable and inventory related to specific

customer contract and no further advances 213750

Note payable to the seller of Tier Electronics LLC payable in annual installments of

$450000 on January21 2013 and $495000 on January 21 2014 Interest accrues

at rate of 8% and is payable monthly The promissory note is collateralized by the

Companys membership interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary Tier Electronics LLC

See note below 495000 900000

Note payable to Wisconsin Department of Commerce payable in monthly

installments of $23685 including interest at 2% with the final payment due

May 2018 collateralized by equipment purchased with the loan proceeds and

substantially all assets of the Company not otherwise collateralized The Company

is required to maintain and increase specified number of employees and the

interest rate is increased in certain cases for failure to meet this requirement See

note below 1136195 1279367

Bank loan payable in fixed monthly payments of $6800 of principal and interest

at rate of .25% below prime as defined subject to floor of 5% as of June 30

2013 and 2012 with any principal due at maturity on June 2018 collateraized by

the building and land
673339 719528

Note payable in fixed monthly installments of $6716 of principal and interest at

rate of 5.5% with any principal due at maturity on May 2028 collateralized

by the building and land 734227 764981

Bank loan payable in monthly installments of $21000 of principal and interest at

rate equal to prime as defined subject to floor of 4.25% with any principal due

at maturity on December 2013 collateralized by specific equipment 29076 274084

3281588 3937960

If the federal capital gains tax rate exceeds 15% and or the State of Wisconsin capital gains tax rate exceeds 5.425%

at any time prior to the payment in full of the unpaid principal balance and accrued interest on the promissory note

then the principal amount of the promissory note shall be retroactively increased by an amount equal to the product of

the aggregate amount of federal and state capital gain realized by the Seller or Sellers sole member as

applicable in connection with the acquisition multiplied by the difference between the combined federal and

State of Wisconsin capital gains tax rate as of the date of calcLilation minus ii the combined federal and State of

Wisconsin capital gains tax rate of 20.425% as of January 21 2011 Any adjustment to the principal amount of the

promissory note shall be effected by increasing the amount of the last payment due under the promissory note without

affecting the next regularly scheduled payments under the promissory note On January 2013 the American

Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was signed effectively raising the top rate for capital gains to 20% The Company

recorded an additional $45000 of principal due under this note as other expense of $45000 for the year ended June

30 2013

As of April 2013 the Wisconsin Department of Commerce granted the Company 12 month deferral of the required

installment payments of $22800 On March 2014 fifty equal monthly installments of $23685 will commence

through April 2018 with the final installment due on May 2018

In May 2012 the Company entered into Securities Purchase Agreements with certain investors providing for the sale of

total of $2465000 of Zero Coupon Convertible Subordinated Notes the Notes The Notes which were to mature on

August 31 2012 were issued to investors with principal amount equal to the investors subscription amount times 110%

and did not bear interest except in the instance of default The Notes were convertible into shares of common stock of the
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Company at an exercise price equal to $0.53 which was the closing price of the common stock on May 2012 the

Conversion Price In connection with the Notes the Company entered into security agreement with the lenders

providing for security interest in all of the assets of the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company In

connection with the purchase of Notes each investor received five-year warrant to purchase number of shares of

Common Stock equal to 55% times such investors investment in the Notes divided by the Conversion Price at an

exercise price equal to the Conversion Price Certain directors and officers of the Company invested $330000 in the

Notes The proceeds to the Company were approximately $2223307 The Company recorded financing costs of

approximately $227693 in connection with the issuance of the Notes as interest expense As of June 30 2012 the Notes

were either converted into the Companys stock or paid in full Interest expense related to the Notes was $1 366450 for

the year ended June 30 2012

Maximum aggregate annual principal payments for fiscal periods subsequent to June 30 2013 are as follows

2014 885786

2015 351166

2016 361085

2017 371428

2018 358411

2019 and thereafter 953712

3281588

NOTE EMPLOYEE/DIRECTOR EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

During the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 the Companys results of operations include compensation

expense for stock options granted and restricted shares vested under its various equity incentive plans The amount

recognized in the financial statements related to stock-based compensation was $785260 and $1586798 based on the

amortized grant date fair value of options and vesting of restricted shares during the years ended June 30 2013 and June

30 2012 respectively

At the annual of meeting of shareholders held on November 2012 the Companys shareholders approved an

amendment of the 2010 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan Omnibus Plan which increased the number of shares of

the Companys common stock available for issuance pursuant to awards under the Omnibus Plan by 4500000 shares

and the creation of the 2012 Non-employee Director Equity Compensation Plan 2012 Director Equity Plan under which

the Company may issue up to 3500000 restricted stock unit awards and other equity awards to our non-employee

directors pursuant to the Companys director compensation policy

During the year ended June 30 2013 options to purchase 713550 shares were granted to employees exercisable at

prices from $0.35 to $0.38 and exercisable at various dates through June 2021 As of June 30 2013 an additional

5638452 shares were available to be issued under the Omnibus Plan

On January 21 2011 certain members of management of Tier Electronics LLC were awarded inducement options to

purchase total of 750000 shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $1.15 The options vest as

follows 420000 vest in three equal annual installments beginning on December 31 2011 based on achievement of

certain performance targets 330000 vest in three equal annual installments beginning on the one-year anniversary of

the grant date As of June 30 2013 140000 of the 420000 shares had vested and 220000 of the 330000 had vested

In January 2010 the Companys new President and CEO was awarded two inducement option grants covering total of

500000 shares with an exercise price of $1.33 per share 100000 of these options vested in two equal installments on

June 30 2010 and December 31 2010 based on the satisfaction of certain performance targets for each of the six-month

periods then ended The remaining 400000 of these options vested over three years with the first one-third vesting on

January 2011 and the remaining two-thirds vested in 24 equal monthly installments beginning on January 31 2011 and

ending on December31 2012

In November 2011 the Companys Chief Operating Officer was awarded two inducement option grants covering total of

500000 shares with an exercise price of $0.79 per share which was the closing price of the Companys common stock on

the NYSE MKT on the date of his appointment 100000 of these options will vest in two equal installments on September

30 2012 and June 30 2013 based on the achievement of certain performance targets As of June 30 2013 25000 of

these shares had vested and the remaining 75000 shares were cancelled The remaining 400000 of these options will

vest over three years with the first one-quarter vesting on November 2012 and the remaining three quarters vesting in

24 equal monthly installments beginning in on December 2012 and ending November 2014 As of June 30 2013

211110 of the remaining 400000 shares had vested
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In aggregate for all plans at June 30 2013 the Company had total of 3926413 options outstanding 5658436 RSUs

outstanding and 5901454 shares available for future grant under the Omnibus Plan

Information with respect to stock option activity under the employee and director plans is as follows

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price

Number of Options Per Share

Balance at July 2011 3322303 1.55

Options granted 1454500 0.82

Options forfeited 537739 1.91

Balance at June 30 2012 4239064 1.25

Options granted 713550 0.38

Options forfeited 1026201 1.01

Balance at June 30 2013 3926413 1.16

The following table summarizes information relating to the stock options outstanding at June 30 2013

ULOLaIIJIIIY

Average Average

Remaining Remaining

Contractual Life Weighted Average Contractual Life Weighted Average

Range of Exercise Prices Number of Options in years Exercise Price Number of Options in years Exercise Price

$0.34to$0.50 656217 7.08 0.39 75666 5.79 0.46

$0.51 to $1.00 1056500 6.14 0.78 622947 5.98 0.77

$1.01 to$1.50 1913696 4.91 1.25 1614279 4.79 1.26

$3.50to$3.82 300000 1.39 3.59 300000 1.39 3.59

Balance at June 30 2013 3926413 5.34 1.16 2612892 4.71 1.39

During the year ended June 30 2013 options to purchase 713550 shares were granted to employees exercisable at

prices from $0.35 to $0.38 per share based on various service and performance based vesting terms from July 2012

through June 2016 and exercisable at various dates through June 2021 During the year ended June 30 2012 options to

purchase 1454500 shares were granted to employees exercisable at prices from $0.37 to $1.16 per share based on

various service and performance based vesting terms from July 2011 through June 2015 and exercisable at various dates

through June 2020

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing method The

Company uses historical data to estimate the expected price volatility the expected option life and the expected forfeiture

rate The Company has not made any dividend payments nor does it have plans to pay dividends in the foreseeable

future The following assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the years ended June 30
2013 and 2012 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

FY2013 FY2012

Expected life of option years 2.5

Risk-free interest rate .46 .61% .24 .55%

Assumed volatility 96- 104% 103 107%

Expected dividend rate 0% 0%

Expected forfeiture rate 4.19 6.66% 4.35 6.80%

Time-vested and performance-based stock awards including stock options restricted stock and restricted stock units are

accounted for at fair value at date of grant Compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service and

performance periods

summary of the status of unvested employee stock options as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 and changes during

the years ended is presented below
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Weighted-Average

Grant Date

Number of Fair Value

Options Per Share

BalanceatJuly 12011 1742168 1.07

Granted 1454500 0.82

Vested 722837 1.08

Forfeited 226334 0.72

Balance at June 30 2012 2247497 0.94

Granted 713550 0.38

Vested 791858 0.95

Forfeited 855668 0.84

Balance at June 30 2013 1313521 0.69

Total fair value of options granted in the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 was $167282 and $709713

respectively At June 30 2013 there was $139220 in unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock

options which is expected to be recognized over the next three years

The Company compensates its directors with restricted stock units RSU5 and cash On November 2011 548051

RSUs were granted to the Companys directors in payment of directors fees through November 2012 under the Omnibus

Plan As of November 2012 all 548051 shares had vested On November 2012 an additional 1100000 shares were

granted to the Companys directors in payment of directors fees through November 2013 under the 2012 Director Equity

Plan As of June 30 2013 825003 of the shares had vested and there were $286998 in directors fees expense settled

with RSUs for the year ended June 30 2013

On May 2011 the Companys President and CEO was awarded 200000 RSUs that vested ratably over three year

period On March 23 2012 the Companys Compensation Committee of the Companys Board of Directors awarded

500000 RSUs to the Companys President and CEO which vested based on the satisfaction of certain performance

targets for the six-month period ending September 30 2012 As of September 30 2012 450000 shares had vested and

the remaining shares were cancelled

In January of 2013 the Company issued 40000 shares related to RSUs issued as compensation for services to

consultant in November of 2010

On May 2013 the Companys Board of Directors awarded 1000000 shares each to the Companys President and

CEO and Chief Operating Officer which will vest on the satisfaction of certain performance targets for the five-month

period ending September 30 2013

As of June 30 2013 there were 2566664 unvested RSUs outstanding which will vest through January 15 2016 and

$801 334 in unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested RSUs which are expected to be recognized through

January 15 2016 Shares of common stock related to vested RSUs are to be issued six months after the holders

separation from service with the Company

The table below summarizes the status of restricted stock unit balances

Number of Weighted-Average

Restricted Stock Valuation Price

Units Per Unit

Balance at July 2011 1400385 0.70

RSUs granted 1048051 0.74

RSUs forfeited

Balance at June 30 2012 2448436 0.72

RSUs granted 4850000 0.26

RSUs forfeited 1600000 0.26

Shares issued 40000 0.34

Balance at June 30 2013 5658436 0.46
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NOTE 10- WARRANTS

At June 30 2013 the following warrants to purchase the Companys common stock were outstanding and exercisable

75000 warrants as partial payment for services exercisable at $0.42 per share which expire in July 2015

2895303 warrants in connection with the Underwriting Agreement entered into with MDB Capital Group LLC as

part of underwriting compensation which provided for the sale of $12 million of common stock as described in

Note 11 on June 19 2012 exercisable at $0475 per share and which expire in June 2017

2558019 warrants in connection with Securities Purchase Agreements entered into with certain investors

providing for the sale of total of $2465000 of Zero Coupon Convertible Subordinated Notes as described in

Note on May 2012 exercisable at $0.53 per share and which expire in May 2017

60500 warrants as partial payment for services exercisable at $1.00 per share which expire March 2015 through

July 2015

40000 warrants to an equipment supplier in January 2011 exercisable at $0.56 per share and which expire in

January 2014 The fair value of the warrants was $11834 and was included in the cost of the equipment

1121875 warrants acquired by certain purchasers of Company shares in March 2010 exercisable at $1.04 per

share and which expire in September 2015

358333 warrants acquired by certain purchasers of Company shares in August 2009 exercisable at $1 .33 per

share and which expire in August 2015

50000 warrants acquired by Empire Financial Group Ltd as part of the underwriting compensation in connection

with our United States public offering which were exercisable at $7.20 per share expired during June 2012

48950 warrants issued and outstanding to Strategic Growth International in connection with capital raising

activities in 2007 with an exercise price of $7.20 per share expired during June 2012

120023 warrants acquired by Empire Financial Group Ltd in 2006 exercisable at $3.23 per share expired during

September 2011

During the year ended June 30 2012 4132553 warrants were exercised in connection with the Socius agreement see
Note 11

For the year ended June 30 2013 the Company recognized approximately $15000 of expense related to warrants

The table below summarizes warrant balances

Weighted-

Average Exercise

Number of Price

Warrants Per Share

Balance at July 2011 1886031 1.73

Warrants granted 9614875 0.60

Warrants expired 365823 4.54

Warrants exercised 4132553 0.72

Balance at June 30 2012 7002530 0.63

Warrants granted 106500 0.59

Warrants expired

Warrants exercised

Balance at June 30 2013 7109030 0.63

NOTE 11 EQUITY

On March 13 2013 the Company entered into common stock purchase agreement the Aspire Purchase Agreement
with Aspire Capital Fund LLC an Illinois limited liability company under which Aspire Capital committed over two year

period to purchase up to $10 million of ZBB Energy common stock based on prevailing market prices over period

preceding each sale subject to certain terms and conditions

On March 19 2013 the Company issued 1725490 shares to Aspire Capital in consideration for Aspire Capitals entry into

the Aspire Purchase Agreement and Aspire Capital purchased 2941176 shares for $1000000 pursuant to the

agreement at $0.34 per share
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On March 25 2013 and March 26 2013 Aspire Capital purchased total of 4963600 shares pursuant to the Aspire

Purchase Agreement at price per share of $0.30 for total purchase price of $1 500000

Aspire Capital purchased 500000 shares at per share price of $0.30 for total purchase price of $151750 on April

2013 450000 shares at per share price of $0.3331 for total purchase price of $149895 on April 12 2013 and

350000 shares at per share price of $0.291 for total purchase price of $102165 on May 2013

Through June 30 2013 the Company had issued total of $2903810 of shares of common stock under this facility and

$7096190 remained available In accordance with applicable NYSE MKT rules shareholder approval will be required for

the Company to sell in excess of 15521706 shares pursuant to the Aspire Purchase Agreement Through June 30 2013

the Company had issued total of 10930266 shares pursuant to the Aspire Purchase Agreement and had the ability to

sell up to 4591440 additional shares under the Aspire Purchase Agreement The Company has not made any additional

sales to Aspire under the Agreement since June 30 2013 In light of limitations on the Companys ability to continue to

effectively use the Aspire Purchase Agreement including NYSE MKT limitation and SEC registration requirements the

Company has no current plans to sell additional shares under the agreement

On June 19 2012 the Company issued 31600000 shares of its common stock at price to the public of $0.38 per share

The net proceeds to ZBB from this offering were approximately $10.7 million after deducting approximately $1 .3 million in

underwriting discounts and other offering expenses In connection with the offering the Company granted the

underwriter warrants to purchase 2895303 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.475 per share These

warrants expire on June 13 2017 The estimated fair value of these warrants was $1 024726 as determined using the

Black-Scholes methodology assuming estimated volatility of 100.86% risk-free interest rate of 0.71% expected dividend

yield of 0.0% This amount was recorded as both an increase to additional paid in capital and as non-cash issuance

cost of the financing transaction

On July 2012 the underwriter for the Companys June 2012 underwritten public offering exercised substantially all of its

over-allotment option and purchased an additional 4591287 shares of the Companys common stock The net proceeds

to the Company from this issuance were $1 600000 after deducting approximately $143000 in offering expenses

On December 13 2011 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreements with strategic investor previously

known to the Company and certain Company officers and directors providing for the issuance of total of 1167340

shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $875505 at price per share equal to $0.75 which was the

closing price of the Companys common stock on December 12 2011

On December 14 2011 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreements with certain investors providing for the

issuance of total of 1425000 shares of the Companys common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $1 01 1893 at

price per share of $0.71 01 which was the closing price of the Companys common stock on December 13 2011 The

closing for both transactions took place on December 16 2011 The net proceeds to the Company after deducting

$84343 of offering costs were $1803055

On January 31 2012 and February 2012 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreements with certain investors

including certain members of the Companys Board of Directors and management providing for the issuance of total of

4431 603 shares of the Companys common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $3165000 at weighted average

price per share of $0.71 The closing took place on February 2012 The net proceeds to the Company after deducting

$308049 of offering costs were $2856954

On August 30 2010 the Company entered into an amended and restated securities purchase agreement Socius

Agreement with Socius CG II Ltd Socius Pursuant to the Socius Agreement the Company had the right over term

of two years subject to certain conditions to require Socius to purchase up to $10 million of redeemable subordinated

debentures and/or shares of redeemable Series preferred stock in one or more tranches The debentures accrued

interest at an annual rate of 10% and the shares of Series preferred stock accumulated dividends at the same rate

Both the debentures and the shares of Series preferred stock were redeemable at the Companys election at any time

after the one year anniversary of issuance Neither the debentures nor the Series preferred shares were convertible

into common stock

On November 10 2010 the Companys Board of Directors approved certificate of designation of preferences rights and

limitations to authorize shares of Series preferred stock in accordance with the terms of the Socius Agreement Upon

the authorization of Series preferred stock and in accordance with the terms of the Socius Agreement the $517168 of

outstanding debentures issued by the Company to Socius CG II Ltd on September 2010 and $7510 of accrued

interest were exchanged into 52.468 shares of Series preferred stock Following the authorization of the Series

Preferred Stock all future tranches under the Socius Agreement involved shares of Series preferred stock instead of

debentures

Under the Socius Agreement in connection with each tranche Socius was obligated to purchase that number of shares of

our common stock equal in value to 135% of the amount of the tranche at per share price equal to the closing bid price
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of the common stock on the trading day preceding our delivery of the tranche notice Socius had the option to pay for the

shares it purchased at its option in cash or collateralized promissory note Any such promissory note accrued interest

at 2.0% per year and was collateralized by securities owned by Socius with fair market value equal to the principal

amount of the promissory note The entire principal balance and interest on the promissory note was due and payable on

the later of the fourth anniversary of the date of the promissory note or when we redeemed all the Series preferred stock

issued by us to Socius under the Socius Agreement and was applied by us toward the redemption of the shares of Series

preferred stock held by Socius

Under the terms of the Socius Agreement the Company was obligated to pay Socius commitment fee in the form of

shares of common stock or cash at the option of the Company in the amount of $500000 if it is paid in cash and

$588235 if it is paid in shares of common stock Payment of the commitment fee occurred 50% at the closing of the first

tranche and 50% at the closing of the second tranche

The following summarizes the transactions under the Socius agreement

Shares of Common Discount on

Series Preferred Shares of Common Stock Issued by ZBB Collateralized

Stock Purchased by Stock Purchased by Total Purchase Price Per Share in Payment of Promissory Note

Tranche Date of Notice Socius Socius cf Common Stock Price Commitment Fee Issued by Socius

September2 2010 517168 1163629 698177 0.60 490196 183922

November 12 2010 490000 906165 661500 0.73 402901 173872

January 12 2011 2020000 1934042 2727000 1.41 716777

March 16 2011 520000 557142 702000 1.26 184461

September 82011 1447240 2621359 1953775 0.75 512815

Novemberl62011 750000 1511194 1012500 0.67
________________ 266130

5744408 8693531 7754952 893097 2037977

The Companys accounting for the 2% notes receivable common stock was to accrue interest on the discounted notes

receivable at 10% as credit to additional paid-in capital The Companys accounting for the Series preferred stock

was to accrete dividends at 10% as charge to additional paid-in capital

In the event of liquidation dissolution or winding up whether voluntary or involuntary of the Company the holders of

shares of Series preferred stock were entitled to be paid the full amount payable on such shares upon the liquidation

dissolution or winding up of the corporation fixed by the Board of Directors with respect to such shares if any before any

amount was to be paid to the holders of the common stock

In connection with the May 2012 Note transaction described in Note on May 2012 the Company sent notice to

Socius to terminate the Socius Agreement

In June 2012 we entered into redemption agreement with Socius pursuant to which we acquired and redeemed all the

shares of Series Preferred Stock issued to Socius under the Socius Agreement the Shares in exchange for the

cancellation of the secured promissory notes issued by Socius to us under the Socius Agreement Following completion

of the June 2012 redemption and the retirement and cancellation of the Shares no shares of Series Preferred Stock

remain outstanding On July 2012 we cancelled the Series preferred stock

NOTE 12- COMMITMENTS

Leasing Activities

The Company leases its Australian research and development facility from non-related Australian company under the

terms of lease that expires October 31 2016 The rental rate was $75596 per annum A$72431 and was subject to

an annual CPI adjustment Rent expense was $102420 and $93755 for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30

2012 respectively The Company renewed the lease on its Australian research and development facility through October

2016 at rental rate of $95855 per annum A$95000 subject to an annual CPI adjustment The Company also leases

building from an officer of its subsidiary Tier Electronics LLC who is also shareholder and director under lease

agreement expiring December 31 2014 The current year rental is $84000 per annum and is subject to CPI adjustment

at renewal The rent expense for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 was $84000 The Company is

required to pay real estate taxes and other occupancy costs related to the facility

The future payments required under the terms of the leases for fiscal periods subsequent to June 30 2013 are as follows

2014 176867

2015 134867

2016 30956

342690
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Employment Contracts

The Company has entered into employment contracts with executives and management personnel The contracts provide

for salaries bonuses and stock option grants along with other employee benefits The employment contracts generally

have no set term and can be terminated by either party There is provision for payments of up to twelve months of

annual salary as severance if we terminate contract without cause along with the acceleration of certain unvested stock

option grants

NOTE 13- RETIREMENT PLANS

All Australian based employees are entitled to varying degrees of benefits on retirement disability or death The

Company contributes to an accumulation fund on behalf of the employees under an award which is legally enforceable

For U.S employees the Company has 401k plan All active participants are 100% vested immediately Expenses

under these plans were $138254 and $91963 for the years ended June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 respectively

NOTE 14INCOME TAXES

The provision benefit for income taxes consists of the following

Year ended June 30

2013 2012

Current 154904 253255
Deferred

Provision benefit for income taxes 154904 253255

The Company accounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach which generally requires the recognition of

deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future income tax consequences of events that have

previously been recognized in the Companys financial statements or tax returns In addition valuation allowance is

recognized if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized in the

foreseeable future Deferred income tax assets are reviewed for recoverability based on historical taxable income the

expected reversals of existing temporary differences tax planning strategies and projections of future taxable income As

result of this analysis the Company has provided for valuation allowance against its net deferred income tax assets as

of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012

The Companys combined effective income tax rate differed from the U.S federal statutory income rate as follows

Income tax benefit computed at the U.S federal statutory rate

Australia research and development credit

Change in valuation allowance

Total

Year ended June 30

2013 2012

-34% -34%

-1 -2

34 34

-1% -2%

Significant components of the Companys net deferred income tax assets as of June 30 2013 and June 30 2012 were as

follows

Year ended June 30

Federal net operating loss carryforwards

Federal other

Wisconsin net operating loss carryforwards

Australia net operating loss carryforwards

Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance

Net deferred income tax assets

2013 2012

19777894 17063374

2273021 1578175

2482692 2080223

1398139 1291699

25931746 22013471

The Company has U.S federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $58 million as of June 30 2013 that

expire at various dates between June 30 2016 and 2033 The Company also has $1495693 in other federal deferred

tax assets comprised of charitable contributions carryforwards and intangible amortization The Company has U.S

federal research and development tax credit carryforwards of approximately $87000 as of June 30 2013 that expire at

various dates through June 30 2033 As of June 30 2013 the Company has approximately $48 million of Wisconsin net

operating loss carryforwards that expire at various dates between June 30 2014 and 2028 As of June 30 2013 the
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Company also has approximately $4.7 million of Australian net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future

taxable income of its Australian subsidiaries with an indefinite carryIorward period

reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of unrecognized income tax benefits is as follows

Year ended June 30

Beginning balance

Effect of foreign currency translation

Ending balance

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

transaction

2013 2012

208593 219500

15496 10907
193097 208593

The unrecognized income tax benefits relate to the credit the Company claimed during fiscal 2011 related to refundable

Australian research and development tax credit for qualified expenditures incurred during fiscal year 2010 If recognized

it would favorably affect the effective income tax rate The amount is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets

The Companys issuance of additional shares of common stock has constituted an ownership change under Section 382

of the Internal Revenue Code which places an annual dollar limit on the use of net operating loss NOL carryforwards

and other tax attributes that may be utilized in the future The calculation of the annual limitation of usage is based on

percentage of the equity value immediately after any ownership change The annual amount of tax attributes that may be

utilized after the change in ownership is limited Previous issuances of additional shares of common stock also resulted in

ownership changes and the annual amount of tax attributes from previous years is limited as well The extent of any

limitations on the usage of net operating losses has not been determined

On September 27 2013 the Company entered into Securities Purchase Agreement with certain investors providing for

the sale of total of 3000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Preferred Stock Certain Directors of the

Company purchased 500 shares

Shares of Preferred Stock were sold for $1000 per share the Stated Value and accrue dividends on the Stated Value

at an annual rate of 10% The Preferred Stock is convertible into total of 15789474 shares of common stock of the

Company Common Stock at conversion price equal to $0.19 which was the closing price of the Common Stock on

September 25 2013 the Conversion Price Upon any liquidation dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation holders

of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Corporation an amount equal to two times the Stated

Value plus any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon

In connection with the purchase of the Preferred Stock investors received warrants to purchase total of 15789474

shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.19 The warrants are exercisable at any time on or prior to September

27 2016 In addition the Company issued total of 407895 Warrants to certain placement agents in connection with the
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in

our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms Our disclosure controls

and procedures include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be

disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management as appropriate

to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system

of disclosure controls and procedures including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the

controls and procedures Accordingly even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable

assurance of achieving their control objectives and management necessarily is required to use its judgment in evaluating

the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys management including

the Chief Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer CFO of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report as defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a-1 5e and Rule 5d-

15e Based on that evaluation the CEO and CEO have concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this

report the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required to be

disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded processed summarized and reported in timely manner and

accumulated and communicated to our management including the our CEO and CFO as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d-1 5f Under the supervision and with the participation of our

management including our CEO and CFO we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over

financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Controls Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework our management concluded that our internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of

June 30 2013

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the Companys registered

public accounting firm pursuant to SEC rules adopted in conformity with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and

Consumer Protection Act of 2010

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d-

15f that occurred during the quarter ended June 30 2013 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

On September 26 2013 the Board of Directors the Board of the Company set December 20 2013 as the date for the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders the Annual Meeting The Board also approved October 25 2013 as

the record date for determining shareholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting Because the date of the

Annual Meeting has been changed by more than 30 calendar days from the anniversary of the Companys 2012 annual

meeting of shareholders in accordance with Rule 4a-5f and Rule 4a-8e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended the Exchange Act the Company has set new deadline for the receipt of any shareholder proposals

submitted pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act Rule 14a-8 for inclusion in the Companys proxy materials

relating to the Annual Meeting In order for proposal under Rule 4a-8 to be timely it must be received by the Company

at its principal offices and directed to the attention of the Companys Secretary by the close of business on October 11

2013 which the Company has determined to be reasonable Such proposals must also comply with the Companys

Amended and Restated Bylaws the Bylaws and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding the

inclusion of shareholder proposals in proxy materials and any such proposal may be omitted if not in compliance with

applicable requirements
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Shareholders wishing to nominate director at the Annual Meeting must provide timely notice thereof to the Company in

order for such nomination to be considered at the Annual Meeting In accordance with Section 2.04.7 of our Bylaws to be

timely such nomination must have been received by the Company at its principal offices by no earlier than June 10 2013

and no later than August 2013 Shareholders wishing to make another proposal at the Annual Meetingother than one

that will be included in our proxy statementwere required under Section 2.04.6 of our Bylaws to notify us by no later

than August 2013 Such nominations and proposals must also satisfy the other requirements for shareholder

nominations and proposals set forth in our Bylaws

All shareholder nominations and proposals must be submitted to Mr Will Hogoboom Secretary ZBB Energy Corporation

N93 Wi 4475 Whittaker Way Menomonee Falls Wisconsin 53051 To avoid disputes as to the date of receipt it is

suggested that any shareholder proposal be submitted by certified mail return receipt requested
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required under this item is set forth in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on December 20 2013 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required under this item is set forth in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on December 20 2013 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required under this item is set forth in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on December 20 2013 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required under this item is set forth in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on December 20 2013 and is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required under this item is set forth in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the

Companys 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on December 20 2013 and is incorporated herein by

reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

The following financial statements are included in Item of this Annual Report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years ended June 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the Years ended June 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Years ended June 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years ended June 30 2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they either are not applicable or the required information is

included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

The Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits required to be filed with this report is incorporated herein by

reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this Form 10-K Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned on September 30 2013 thereunto

duly authorized

ZBB ENERGY CORPORATION

Is Eric ADfelbach

Eric Apfelbach

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Form 10-K Annual Report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Position Date

______________________________________
Chief Executive Officer September 30 2013

Principal Executive Officer and Director

______________________________________
Chief Financial Officer September 30 2013

Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

__________________________________ Director and Chief Operating Officer September 30 2013

__________________________________ Chairman and Director September 30 2013

__________________________________ Director September 30 2013

__________________________________ Director September 30 2013

__________________________________ Director September 30 2013

Director September 30 2013

Is Jeffrey Reichard

Jeffrey Reichard

Director September 30 2013

Is Eric Apfelbach

Eric Apfelbach

Is William Hopoboom

William Hogoboom

Is Charles Stankiewicz

Charles Stankiewicz

Is Paul Koeoe

Paul Koeppe

Is Richard Abdoo

Richard Abdoo

Is Manfred Birnbaum

Manf red Birnbaum

Is James Ozanne

James Ozanne

Is Richard Payne

Richard Payne
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

No DescriDtion Incorporated by Reference to

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of ZBB Energy Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Corporation as amended

Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on

October 27 2006

3.2 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of ZBB Incorporated by reference to Appendix

Energy Corporation attached to the Companys Definitive Proxy

Statement filed on September 24 2010

3.3 Certificate of Cancellation of Series Preferred Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Stock Report on Form 8-K filed on July 2012

3.4 Amended and Restated By-laws of ZBB Energy Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Corporation as of November 2009 definitive proxy statement filed on September

25 2009

4.1 Form of Stock Certificate Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Amendment No to Registration Statement on

Form SB-2 filed on April 13 2007

4.2 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Report on Form 8-K filed on August 14 2009

4.3 Form of Warrant Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2010

4.4 Form of Debenture Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Report on Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010

4.5 Form of Underwriter Warrant Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April 10 2012

4.6 Form of Warrant Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on May 22012

10.1 2002 Stock Option Plan of ZBB Energy Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

April 16 2008

10.2 2005 Employee Stock Option Scheme of ZBB Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Energy Corporation Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on

October 27 2006

10.3 2007 Equity Incentive Plan of ZBB Energy Incorporated by reference to the Companys
Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

April 16 2008

10.4 Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement Incorporated by reference to the Companys
by and between the Company and Paul Report on Form 8-K filed on November 2009

Koeppe dated as of November 2009
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Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

10.5 Agreement dated January 2010 by and

between the Company and Eric Apfelbach

10.6 Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated

January 2010 by and between the Company
and Eric Apfelbach performance-based

10.7 Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated

January 2010 by and between the Company
and Eric Apfelbach time-based

10.8 2010 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

10.9 Amendment No ito 2010 Omnibus Long-Term

Incentive Plan

10.10 2010 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan Form

Stock Option Award Agreement

10.11 2010 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan Form

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

10.12 Independent contractor agreement dated

December 2010 between ZBB Energy

Corporation and Will Hogoboom

10.13 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated

December 29 1010

10.14 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among ZBB

Energy Corporation DCDC Acquisition

Company LLC Tier Electronics LLC and

Jeffrey Reichard dated January 21 2011

10.15 Registration Rights Agreement between ZBB

Energy Corporation and Tier Electronics LLC

dated January 21 2011 Asset Purchase

Agreement by and among ZBB Energy

Corporation DCDC Acquisition Company LLC

Tier Electronics LLC and Jeffrey Reichard

dated January 21 2011

10.16 Employment Agreement between ZBB Energy

Corporation and Jeffrey Reichard dated

January 21 2011

Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter

ended December 31 2009

Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended December 31 2009

Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter

ended December 31 2009

Incorporated by reference to Appendix

attached to the Companys Definitive Proxy

Statement filed on September 24 2010

Incorporated by reference to Appendix

attached to the Companys Definitive Proxy

Statement filed on September 25 2012

Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

January 31 2010

Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

January 31 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on December 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on December 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on January 24 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on January 24 2011 Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on January 24 2011
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Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

10.17 Form of Nonstatutory Option Agreements Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

issued on January 21 2011 to Jeff Reichard Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

Joanne Reichard and Nathan Jobe on January 24 2011

10.18 $1350000 Non-negotiable Promissory Note Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

issued on January 21 2011 to Tier Electronics Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

LLC on January 24 2011

10.19 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

June 13 2011 Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on June 14 2011

10.20 Collaboration Agreement between ZBB Energy Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to

Corporation and Honam Petrochemical the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

Corporation dated April 20111 for the year ended June 30 2011

10.21 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to

June 14 2011 the Companys Registration Statement on Form

S-i filed on February 16 2012

10.22 Placement Agency Agreement between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Energy Corporation and MDB Capital Group Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

LLC dated June 2011 on June 14 2011

10.23 Joint Venture Agreement of Anhui Meineng Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Store Energy Co Ltd by and between ZBB Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

PowerSav Holdings Limited and Anhui Xinrui the quarter ended September 30 2011

Investment Co Ltd dated August 30 2011

10.24 Limited Liability Company Agreement of ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

PowerSav Holdings Limited by and between Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for

ZBB Cayman Corporation and PowerSav Inc the quarter ended September 30 2011

dated August 30 2011

10.25 Anhui Meineng Store Energy Co Ltd Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Supplemental Agreement to the Joint Venture Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for

Agreement by and between ZBB PowerSav the quarter ended December 31 2011

Holdings Limited and Anhui Xinlong Investment

Management Co Ltd dated November 15
2011

10.26 License Agreement by and between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

PowerSav Holdings Ltd and Anhui Meineng Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

Store Energy Co Ltd dated November ii the quarter ended December 31 2011

2011

10.27 Management Services Agreement by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

between ZBB PowerSav Holdings Ltd and Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for

Anhui Meineng Store Energy Co Ltd dated the quarter ended December 31 2011

November 11 2011
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Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

10.28 Offer letter between ZBB Energy Corporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

and Charles Stankiewicz dated November Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for

2011 the quarter ended December 31 2011

10.29 Form of Nonstatutory Option Agreements Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

issued on November 2011 to Charles Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for

Stankiewicz the quarter ended December 31 2011

10.30 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

December 13 2011 Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on December 15 2011

10.31 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

December 14 2011 Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on December 15 2011

10.32 Placement Agency Agreement between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Energy Corporation and MDB Capital Group Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

LLC dated December 142011 on December 15 2011

10.33 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the

December 13 2011 Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for

the quarter ended December 31 2011

10.34 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

February 2012 Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on February 2012

10.35 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

January 31 2012 Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on February 2012

10.36 Placement Agency Agreement between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Energy Corporation and MDB Capital Group Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

LLC dated February 2012 on February 2012

10.37 Offer letter between ZBB Energy Corporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to

and Kevin Dennis dated February 2010 Pre-Effective Amendment No ito Companys

Registration Statement on Form 5-1 filed on

April10 2012

10.38 Addendum to Employment Agreement between Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to

ZBB Energy Corporation and Kevin Dennis Pre-Effective Amendment No to Companys
dated August 29 2011

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April10 2012

10.39 Offer letter between ZBB Energy Corporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to

and Daniel Nordloh dated April 29 2010 Pre-Effective Amendment No to Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April 10 2012

10.40 First Amendment to Letter Agreement between Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to

ZBB Energy Corporation and Daniel Nordloh Pre-Effective Amendment No to Companys
dated April 28 2011

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April 10 2012
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Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

10.41 Second Amendment to Letter Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to

between ZBB Energy Corporation and Daniel Pre-Effective Amendment No to Companys
Nordloh dated March 23 2012

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April10 2012

10.42 Form of Underwriting Agreement between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Pre

Energy Corporation and MDB Capital Group Effective Amendment No to Companys
LLC dated June 19 2012

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on

April 10 2012

10.43 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on May 22012

10.44 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on May 22012

10.45 Form of Security Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on May 22012

10.46 ZBB Energy Corporation Director Incorporated by reference to the Companys

Compensation Policy dated November 2012 Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed on

November 2012

10.47 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

ZBB Energy Corporation and Aspire Capital Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

Fund LLC dated March 13 2013 on March 15 2013

10.48 Registration Rights Agreement between ZBB Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Energy Corporation and Aspire Capital Fund Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

LLC dated March 13 2013 on March 15 2013

10.49 Second Amendment to Promissory Note Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

between Tier Electronics LLC and TE Holdings Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for

Group LLC dated January 21 2013 the quarter ended March 31 2013

21 Subsidiaries of ZBB Energy Corporation

23 Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

No Description Incorporated by Reference to

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer

pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 Interactive Data Files

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Paul Koeppe United States of America

Chairman and Director N93W14475 Whittaker Way

Formerly Founder and CEO of Superconductivity Menomonee Falls WI 53051

Inc Executive Vice President of Strategic Tel 262 253 9800

Planning for American Superconductor and acting
Fax 262 253 9822

CEO of Best Power Inc
Websites

Eric Apfelbach www.zbbenergy.com

President Chief Executive Officer and Director www.tierelectronics.com

William Hogoboom Australia

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 240 Barrington Street

Bibra Lake

Charles Stankiewicz
Western Australia 6163

Chief Operating Officer and Director
Tel 61 894942055

Daniel Nordloh
Fax 61 9494 2066

Executive Vice President Global Business

Development

LEGAL ADVISORS
Kevin Dennis

Vice President of Engineering Product
KL Gates LIP

Development Chicago Illinois

Jeffrey Reichard

President of Tier Electronics and Director
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Anthony Siebert

Vice President of Sales and Product Marketing
Baker

Tilly
Virchow Krause LIP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

Richard Abdoo

Director

President of R.A Abdoo Co LLC formerly
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of

Wisconsin Energy Corporation
Computershare Investor Services

North LaSalle Street

Manfred Birnbaum Chicago IL 60602

Director 800 662 7232 U.S

Formerly Chief Executive Officer of English 781 575 4238 Outside the U.S
Electric Corp wholly owned subsidiary of

General Electric Company of England

James Ozanne
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Director
Three Part Advisors LLC

Formerly Executive Vice President of GE Capital Lewis Kreps or David Mossberg
Chief Executive Officer of US West Financial

214 599 7955
Services and Chairman of Source One Mortgage

Richard Payne

Director

Principal of Richard Payne Associates

Safe Harbor Statement

Any statements in this annual report about future expectations plans and prospects for the company including our expectations regarding the future financial

performance of the Company and other statements containing the words believes anticipates plans expects will and similar expressions constitute

forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigatior Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and

uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements as result of various factors including those

risks and uncertainties described in the Risk Factors and in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations sections of

our Annual Report on Form 10-K included as part of this annual report We urge you to consider those risks and uncertainties in evaluating our forward-looking

statements We caution readers not to place undue reliance upon any such forwaid-looking statements which speak only as of the date made
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